AGENDA
ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCE
COMMITTEE MEETING
Santa Fe Irrigation District
Tuesday, November 10, 2020
9:00 a.m.
Held at Santa Fe Irrigation District
5920 Linea del Cielo, Rancho Santa Fe, California 92067
Due to the COVID-19 State of Emergency and pursuant waivers to certain Brown Act
provisions under the Governor’s Executive Orders, meetings of the Board and Board
Committees will be conducted via Zoom Meeting (webinar/teleconference) and there will be
no physical location from which members of the public may participate. Instead, the public
may listen to the meeting proceedings and provide public comment and comments on specific
agenda items by following these instructions:
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88125900954?pwd=SHJvTXdxbkVncGNVTUd3SGJmVmE3Zz09
Passcode: 811014
Or iPhone one-tap :
US: +16699009128,,88125900954#,,,,,,0#,,811014# or
+12532158782,,88125900954#,,,,,,0#,,811014#
Or Telephone:
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
US: +1 669 900 9128 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1
312 626 6799 or +1 646 558 8656 or 877 853 5257 (Toll Free) or 888 475 4499 (Toll Free)
Webinar ID: 881 2590 0954
Passcode: 811014
International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keDGAsMjXn

Instructions for Making Public Comment: Members of the public who wish to address the Board
of Directors under public comment or on specific agenda items may do so in one of the following
ways:

You can send written comments to the Board Secretary for receipt no later than 7:30 am
on November 10, 2020 to be read during the appropriate portion of the meeting. Written comments
must be limited to 300 words/ have a reading limit of 3 minutes for each comment and emailed to
kjohnson@sfidwater.org, mailed to the attention of Kim Johnson, Board Secretary, SFID, P. O. Box
409, Rancho Santa Fe, CA 92067, or physically deposited in the District’s payment drop box located
in the public parking lot at the District’s Administrative Office at or mail to 5920 Linea del Cielo,
Rancho Santa Fe, California 92067.

On Zoom via phone, you can also raise your hand by pressing *9 when to notify the
moderator that you wish to speak during the current item.
These public comment procedures supersede the District’s standard public comment policies and
procedures to the contrary.
CALL MEETING TO ORDER
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
Opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee (Government Code Section 54954.3) Individuals may address the
Committee regarding items not appearing on the posted agenda, which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Committee,
at any time. Comments and inquiries pertaining to items listed on the agenda will be received during the deliberation of the agenda
item. Speakers are asked to state their name, address, and topic, and to observe a time limit of three (3) minutes each. Members
of the public desiring to address the Committee are asked to complete a speaker’s card, available at the table near the entrance
and present it to the Board Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.

ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. Approval of September 8, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes (pages 4-6)
2. Approval of October 27, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes (pages 7-8)
3. Directors' and General Manager’s Expense/Reimbursement (pages 9-11)
4. Monthly Investment Transaction Report (page 12)
5. Review and Discuss FY20 Draft Financial Statements (pages 13-16)
6. Recommend Board Approval for Staff Proposal to Forgo January 1, 2021 Santa Fe
Irrigation District and San Diego County Water Authority Rate Increases (pages 17-27)
7. Recommend Board Approval of the Revised Santa Fe Irrigation District Reserve Policy
(pages 28-48)
REPORTS
8. Administrative Services Report (verbal)
9. Public Communications and Outreach Report (verbal)
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10. General Manager’s Report (verbal)
11. Committee Members’ Comments (verbal)
INFORMATION ITEMS - None
ADJOURN
Next Scheduled Administrative and Finance Committee meeting:
Tuesday, February 9, 2021 @ 9:00 a.m.
Assistance for the disabled: If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call the
Board Secretary at (858) 756-2424 for assistance at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting so the necessary arrangements
can be made.
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MINUTES
ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCE
COMMITTEE MEETING
Santa Fe Irrigation District
September 8, 2020
Santa Fe Irrigation District
5920 Linea del Cielo
Rancho Santa Fe, CA 92067

Due to the COVID-19 State of Emergency and pursuant waivers to certain Brown Act provisions
under the Governor’s Executive Orders, meetings of the Board and Board Committees will be
conducted via Zoom Meeting (webinar/teleconference) and there will be no physical location from
which members of the public may participate. Instead, the public may listen and/or view the
meeting proceedings and provide public comment and comments on specific agenda items by
following the posted instructions, including how to submit written comments for inclusion,
instructions for viewing or listening to the meeting, and how to participate via Zoom. Additionally,
these public comment procedures supersede the District’s standard public comment policies and
procedures to the contrary.
PRESENT: Chairman David Petree, Director Frank Creede, General Manager Albert Lau,
Executive Assistant Kim Johnson, Administrative Services Manager Seth Gates, and Public
Communications Officer Teresa Penunuri were present.
CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Chairman Petree called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
None
ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 11, 2020 MINUTES
The Committee approved the minutes as presented.
2. DIRECTORS' AND GENERAL MANAGER’S EXPENSE/REIMBURSEMENT
The Committee reviewed and approved the reports as submitted. Director Creede
requested that the amount the District pays for health care costs for Directors be included
on this monthly report as he felt it could be an important election issue.
3. MONTHLY INVESTMENT TRANSACTION REPORT
Administrative and Finance Committee
September 8, 2020
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The Committee reviewed and approved the report as submitted.
Director Creede requested the Committee have the opportunity to discuss paying down
debt, i.e., CalPERS with a proposed 7% return at no risk, rather than leaving excess in other
funds. ASM Gates commented that during the Board discussions while revisiting the
Reserve Policy, options may be recognized for better ways to maintain cash flow.
4. REVIEW PROPOSED UPDATES TO SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT RESERVE
POLICY AND RESERVE LEVELS AND RECOMMEND BOARD APPROVAL
ASM Gates presented the item and he and GM Lau responded to questions from the
Committee.
The Committee discussed clarifying the proposed Local Water Reserve Fund and how to
identify the recipients of the funds. Chairman Petree noted that he is aware that “dividends”
cannot be returned to “shareholders”; however, felt staff’s recommendation of applying the
savings generated by excess local water to reduce the costs of imported water is fair, and
requested that allocation to Tiers 3, 4, and 5 be done as soon as practical. The Committee
also requested language be added for guidelines to mitigate unforeseen emergencies “worst
case scenario,” i.e., wildfires, etc.
Director Creede expressed his concern over the risks of unallocated funds being
confiscated by the State and requested legal review to ensure the policy sufficiently protects
District’s assets.
After a lengthy discussion, the Committee directed staff to move the item forward for full
Board consideration at their regular September meeting.
5. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED COMMUNICATION AND OUTREACH TO
AMI CUSTOMERS
PCO Penunuri presented the item and responded to questions from the Committee. She
described the proposed activities targeting increased AMI Portal enrollment while detailing
the benefits derived from participation; first and foremost, eliminating water waste.
This was for the Committee’s information only. No action was requested or required of
the Committee.
6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS REVISING
COMMITTEE MEETING TIME

ADMINISTRATIVE

AND

FINANCE

GM Lau noted that Director Creede requested the modified start time because he has a
long-standing meeting which conflicts with the current Committee meeting start time.
The Committee agreed to modify the Committee meeting start time to 9:00 a.m.
Administrative and Finance Committee
September 8, 2020
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7. CONSIDER CANCELING
COMMITTEE MEETING

OCTOBER

ADMINISTRATIVE

AND

FINANCE

Chairman Petree noted he is not available for the October AFC meeting; therefore, the
Committee agreed to cancel the October meeting.
REPORTS
8. ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES REPORT – No report
9. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH REPORT
PCO Penunuri reported she is developing an extensive outreach plan to promote the
upcoming Special Board Meetings to update the District’s Strategic Plan.
10. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
GM Lau congratulated ASM Gates and his team for being awarded the Government
Finance Officers’ Association (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting for FY19. This is the 14th consecutive year the District has been
recognized.
11. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ COMMENTS - None
ADJOURN
Chairman Petree adjourned the meeting at 11:04 a.m.
_________________________________
David Petree, Chairman

Administrative and Finance Committee
September 8, 2020
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MINUTES
SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCE
COMMITTEE MEETING
Santa Fe Irrigation District
October 27, 2020
Santa Fe Irrigation District
5920 Linea del Cielo
Rancho Santa Fe, CA 92067

Due to the COVID-19 State of Emergency and pursuant waivers to certain Brown Act provisions
under the Governor’s Executive Orders, meetings of the Board and Board Committees will be
conducted via Zoom Meeting (webinar/teleconference) and there will be no physical location from
which members of the public may participate. Instead, the public may listen and/or view the
meeting proceedings and provide public comment and comments on specific agenda items by
following the posted instructions, including how to submit written comments for inclusion,
instructions for viewing or listening to the meeting, and how to participate via Zoom. Additionally,
these public comment procedures supersede the District’s standard public comment policies and
procedures to the contrary.
PRESENT: Chairman David Petree, Director Frank Creede, General Manager Albert Lau,
Executive Assistant Kim Johnson, Administrative Services Manager Seth Gates, Public
Communications Officer Teresa Penunuri, and members of the public were present.
CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Chairman Petree called the meeting to order at 8:45 a.m.
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
None
ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. REVIEW PROPOSED RESERVE POLICY MODIFICATIONS
ASM Gates presented the item and he and GM Lau responded to questions from the
Committee.
During the lengthy discussion, the Committee expressed their desire to set a date certain,
rather than Staff’s proposal of “as soon as feasible,” to return savings to rate
payersgenerated from the greater utilization of local water than projected. The Committee
proposed January 1 annually.
The Committee also discussed the Policy using recommended targets, rather than minimum
balances, in each of the reserve funds.
Special Administrative and Finance Committee
October 27, 2020
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After discussion, the Committee directed staff to make the requested edits and return the
Reserve Policy to the Committee for further consideration at their November 10, 2020
meeting.
2. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ COMMENTS – No further comments
ADJOURN
Chairman Petree adjourned the meeting at 10:54 a.m.
_________________________________
David Petree, Chairman

Special Administrative and Finance Committee
October 27, 2020
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Board of Directors Expenses
Paid During the Month of October 2020 and Fiscal Year-to-Date

Per Diem
Payments
Creede

Paid During the Month
Mileage &
Travel & Healthcare &
Parking
Meetings Other Benefits

0.00

0.00

0.00

300.00

0.00

0.00

King

0.00

0.00

0.00

Menshek

0.00

0.00

Petree

0.00

0.00

***Hogan

$

300.00

$

0.00

$

Total

Board

Compensated Days of Service *
Paid During the Month
Committee Other
Total

For July 1st
to Present

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0

0

782.38

3,129.52

1

0

1

2

8

0.00

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,200.00

0

0

0

0

8

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

For July 1st
to Present

482.38 **

$

482.38

$

782.38

$

4,329.52

* Compensated days of service may represent multiple meetings per day.
** Net of Director contribution toward expenditures
***Also represents SFID at San Diego County Water Authority & Metropolitan Water District delegate
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Investment Transaction Report for October 2020
The following is a list of the month’s investment activity
Security/Investment Pool

Settlement
Date

Activity

Yield to
Maturity

Maturity
Date

Principal
Amount

NONE
Net Activity

Investment Funds*
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
San Diego County Treasurer’s Pool**
California Asset Management Program (CAMP)
Total

As of 9/30/20
25,728,397
4,480,046
709,645
$30,918,088

As of 10/31/20
25,782,518
4,480,046
709,759
$30,972,323

Distribution of Investments
as of October 31, 2020
SD County Pool
14.5%
CAMP
2.3%
LAIF
83.2%

*May include accrued interest not available currently for withdrawal
** Not available at time of publication
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DATE:

November 10, 2020

TO:

Administrative & Finance Committee

FROM:

General Manager

SUBJECT:

Review and Discuss FY20 Draft Financial Statements

RECOMMENDATION:
It is the Staff recommendation that the Administrative & Finance Committee:
1.

Review and discuss the Draft FY20 Financial Statements for the Santa Fe Irrigation
District; and

2.

Take other action as appropriate.

DISCUSSION:
Revenues, Expenses & Change in Net Position
Santa Fe Irrigation District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 / 2019
FYE 2020
FYE 2019
$ Change
Water sales
Base meter fees
Filtration Revenues
Other
Total operating revenues
Water purchased
Water treatment
Admin / engineering / transmission / distribution
Depreciation & amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Property taxes and assessments
Investment income
R.E. Badger income (loss) - undivided interest
Other
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (Loss) before capital contributions

$

% Change

18,535,734 $
5,837,751
3,017,595
477,037
27,868,117 $

18,472,415 $
5,535,582
2,109,103
471,944
26,589,044 $

63,319
302,169
908,492
5,093
1,279,073

0.3%
5.5%
43.1%
1.1%
4.8%

$

9,908,066 $
4,850,871
10,018,990
3,278,660
28,056,587 $

10,459,108 $
4,239,608
9,119,633
3,243,425
27,061,774 $

(551,042)
611,263
899,357
35,235
994,813

-5.3%
14.4%
9.9%
1.1%
3.7%

$

(188,470) $

(472,730) $

284,260

-60.1%

$

$

2,645,623 $
750,509
751,329
252,244
4,399,705 $

2,518,010 $
646,817
668,814
193,651
4,027,292 $

127,613
103,692
82,515
58,593
372,413

5.1%
16.0%
30.3%
9.2%

$

4,211,235 $

3,554,562 $

656,673

18.5%

$
$

Capital contributions
Changes in net position

380,762

448,401

(67,639)

-15.1%

4,591,997

4,002,963

589,034

14.7%

4,002,963

5.4%

4,591,997

5.9%

Net Position, Beginning of year

$

78,336,108 $

Net Position, End of year

$ 82,928,105

74,333,145 $

$ 78,336,108
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The following is a summary outline of the Santa Fe Irrigation District’s DRAFT financial
statements for FY20. The figures presented here may change, but in no materially significant
manner.
Operating Revenues
The District’s operating revenues increased by $1,279,079, primarily due to a $908,492 increase
in joint facilities costs that were reimbursed by San Dieguito Water District (SDWD). This
increase is due to both treatment costs and capital reimbursements at SDWD’s contractual
obligation for sharing percentage. Total potable water revenues (variable & base fees) increased
by $365,488 or 1.5% due to the combined factors of a marginal increase in potable water demand
in addition to the District implemented 3% overall revenue requirement effective February 2020.
Total water demand increased from 8,982 AF in FY19 to 9,079 AF in FY20, an increase of 1.1%.
Operating Expenses
Despite a 5.0% overall rate increase from the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) for
wholesale purchases of potable water, District water purchases declined by $551,402 or 5.3%.
This is due to an increase in local water availability to meet customer demands. The FY19 local
water yield totaled 2,492 AF, while FY20 local yield increased by 912 AF to 3,404 AF. As a
result, water pumping costs increased by approximately $200,000, contributing to the $899,357 or
9.9% increase in admin / engineering / transmission / distribution costs. The remaining increase
in expenditures in admin / engineering / transmission / distribution costs includes (among others)
an approximate $500,000 increase in salary expenditures primarily related to the Board approved
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 5% salary adjustment effective July 1, 2019, the split of
the previous Operations Manager into a Water Treatment Plant Manager & Distribution System
Manager, and higher vacancy savings in FY19 due to retirements not experienced in FY20; and
an approximate increase of $380,000 in GASB 68 adjustments to updated the current District
pension liability (non-cash).
Water treatment expenditures increased by $611,263 or 14.4%, due to an approximate $150,000
increase in chemical expenditures due to purchase timing, cost increases, and water quality; an
approximate increase of $165,000 in salary expenditures due to the 5% aforementioned salary
adjustment and other memorandum of understanding adjustments; an approximate $221,000
GASB 68 adjustment to update pension obligations; and an approximate $150,000 increase in
CalPERS unfunded actuarial liability change (cash).
Overall, the District had an operating loss of $188,470, prior to the addition of non-operating
revenues.
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) is $4,399,705, and increase of $372,413 or 9.2%. This
increase is attributable to property tax revenue, investment income, and grant revenue (among
others). Property tax revenue increased by $127,613 or 5.1% due to assessed valuation increases
& home sales within the District that re-assessed the homeowner’s Proposition 13 tax base.
Additionally, investment income increased by $103,692 or 16.0% due to the increased yield
achieved in District investments during the first 9 months of the year & the increased cash balance.
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Grant revenues increased by $112,020 or 167.6% due to the District receiving initial
reimbursements for the District’s joint facilities seismic retrofit project.
Net Position
The District’s overall net position increased by $4,591,997 to $82,928,105. Increases in the net
position for the District is typically due to non-operating revenues, which are utilized for capital
improvement spending for the District. Historically, during times not spent in drought, the
District’s operating revenues are basically sufficient to fund operating expenditures & all nonoperating revenues are spent or set-aside for capital spending, increasing the overall net position
of the District.
Statement of Net Position
Santa Fe Irrigation District
Statement of Net Position
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 / 2019
FYE 2020
FYE 2019
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Other
Current assets
Non current assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Deferred outlfow of resources

$ Change

33,587,609
27,145,725
4,585,896
4,187,050
732,955
668,707
$ 38,906,460 $ 32,001,482 $
427,651
1,930,837
81,408,521
82,130,569
$ 120,742,632 $ 116,062,888 $

% Change

6,441,884
398,846
64,248
6,904,978
(1,503,186)
(722,048)
4,679,744

23.7%
9.5%
9.6%
21.6%
-77.9%
-0.9%
4.0%

$

3,412,908 $

3,142,917 $

269,991

8.6%

$

2,870,430
1,203,032
4,073,462 $

1,779,454
1,325,000
949,414
4,053,868 $

1,090,976
(1,325,000)
253,618
19,594

61.3%
-100.0%
26.7%
0.5%

$

13,364,298
3,620,450
19,021,922
328,144
36,334,814 $

12,351,366
3,807,688
19,773,251
280,956
36,213,261 $

1,012,932
(187,238)
(751,329)
47,188
121,553

8.2%
-4.9%
-3.8%
16.8%
0.3%

$

40,408,276 $

40,267,129 $

141,147

0.4%

819,159

602,568

216,591

35.9%

Net investment in capital assets

62,386,599

61,032,318

1,354,281

2.2%

Unrestricted

20,541,506

17,303,790

3,237,716

18.7%

$ 82,928,105

$ 78,336,108

4,591,997

5.9%

Accounts payable
Installment purchase agreement - current portion
Other
Current liabilities
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Undivided interest - San Dieguito Water District
Other
Non current liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflow of resources

Total Net Position

$

Assets
Total assets increased by $4,679,744 or 4.0%, with current assets increasing by $6,441,884 or
23.7% due to an increase in the District’s total cash and investments, which is a result of the delay
in capital improvement spending in FY19 & FY20 as compared to budget projections. Capital
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assets also decreased by $722,048 or 0.9% due to depreciation exceeding additions to capital assets
(and due to the previously mentioned deferred spending). Deferred outflows of resources of
$3,412,908 is the reclassification of all cash contributions to the pension plan that were paid after
the measurement date of June 30, 2019. GASB 68 does not allow the cash payments made by the
employer to the pension plan after the measurement date to have any effect on either the net
pension liability or the pension expense that is reflected in the financial statements.
Liabilities
Total liabilities increased by $141,147 or 0.4%, with current liabilities increasing by $19,594 or
0.5% primarily due to the District’s accounts payable increasing $1.1 million due to the timing of
invoices submitted by vendors, among others. This increase was offset by the $1.3 million
reduction in the District’s installment purchase agreement as all outstanding indebtedness was paid
in October 2019. Non-current liabilities increased by $121,553 or 0.3%, with net pension liability
increasing by approximately $1.0 million or 8.2% based on the latest CalPERS valuation - due
primarily to reduced investment returns and mortality / morbidity assumptions. OPEB liabilities
were reduced slightly, by $187,238 or 4.9% based on the latest actuarial valuation update per
GASB 75. The District continues funding the full actuarial determined contribution for both
accounts.
The deferred inflows of resources increased by $216,591 or 35.9%, which represents the additional
benefits earned by employees since the valuation date of June 30, 2019 per the latest valuation and
GASB 68.
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
The notes to the basic financial statements show both GASB required information and additional
details necessary to achieve the Government Finance Officer Association distinguished
presentation award. There are fourteen (14) notes in the section that offer additional insight into
District operations, obligations, and financial status. Also included is the required supplementary
information and supplementary information, which is primarily the combining schedules for
District and Joint Facilities operations.
Ken Pun from the Pun Group will attend the Administrative and Finance Committee meeting to
provide a brief review of the draft financial statements and answer questions. The final FY20
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will be included on the December Board meeting agenda
to be received and filed.
FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact as a result of the review of this item.
Prepared by: Seth Gates, Administrative Services Manager
Approved by: Albert C. Lau, P.E. General Manager
Enclosure:

Draft FY20 Financial Statements and Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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DATE:

November 10, 2020

TO:

Administrative and Finance Committee

FROM:

General Manager

SUBJECT:

Recommend Board Approval for Staff Proposal to Forgo January 1, 2021
Santa Fe Irrigation District and San Diego County Water Authority Rate
Increases

RECOMMENDATION:
It is the Staff recommendation that the Committee:
1. Recommend Board approval to forgo the January 1, 2021 Santa Fe Irrigation District
and San Diego County Water Authority rate increases; and
2. Discuss and take other action as appropriate.
BACKGROUND:
At their January 16, 2020 meeting, the Santa Fe Irrigation District (District) Board of Directors
(Board) approved three separate 3% maximum rate adjustments to potable water to offset District
operating costs and also authorized pass-through of San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA)
whole-sale potable water price increases, not to exceed 5%. The first of these three separate rate
adjustments and SDCWA wholsesale passthroughs occurred on February 1, 2020, with the
subsequent two adjustments and SDCWA pass-throughs occurring on January 1, 2021 and January
1, 2022. Staff committed to return to the Board on annual basis, prior to these two subsequent
adjustments and pass-throughs to assess the District’s current financial position and make a
recommendation in regards to both items.
DISCUSSION:
Staff proposal is to not implement any District rate adjustment and not pass-through any
SDCWA wholesale potable water rate increases, effective January 1, 2021
Staff have been engaging the Board in regards to potential updates to the District’s Reserve Policy
(Policy) and overall reserve levels. In conjunction with this discussion, Staff and the Board have
discussed current un-audited total District cash and investments and the likelihood that there will
be a to-be-determined level of District funds available for utilization above Board adopted Policy
levels. Based on the likelihood for availability of District funds above Board adopted Policy levels,
Staff’s recommendation is to forgo the January 1, 2021 District potable water price increase and
to not pass-through the January 1, 2021 SDCWA wholesale price increase to customers. Forgoing
these two items are projected to utilize a portion of these District assets above Board adopted
levels, as discussed in the following sections.
To confirm impacts associated with Staff’s proposition, Carollo (the current cost-of-service
consultant) was engaged to complete a technical memorandum (TM) outlining the financial impact
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associated with forgoing the January 1, 2021 District and SDCWA rate increases. This TM is
included as Attachment A to this report.
Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Impacts
The FY21 Budget projected a positive contribution to reserves of approximately $100,000 at fiscal
year-end based on the budgetary reductions proposed by Staff, implementation of the full 3%
District adjustment, and full pass-through of the 4.8% SDCWA wholesale potable water cost
increase (among other assumptions). This reserve contribution was based on a variable potable
water sales revenue of $20,211,910 and fixed revenues of $5,479,360, for a total of $25,691,270
in potable water revenue. Removing the District increase and the SDCWA pass-through, variable
potable water sales revenue are $19,853,033 (TM table 5) and fixed revenues of $5,318,216 (TM
table 6), for a total of $25,171,249 in potable water revenue – or a reduction of $520,021, as shown
below.
This decrease in revenue necessitates the utilization of $374,230 in District reserves to balance the
FY21 Budget, which is anticipated to be available for utilization from District assets above Board
adopted Policy levels.

Santa Fe Irrigation District
Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Summary
Sources of Funds
OPERATING REVENUES

FY 2021
Adopted Budget

FY 2021
Revised Budget

Variance

Potable Water Sales
Recycled Water Sales
Fixed Charges - Potable Water
Fixed Charges - Recycled Water
Other Operating Revenue

$

20,211,910
944,272
5,479,360
71,110
3,516,345

$

19,853,033
944,272
5,318,216
71,110
3,516,345

$

(358,877)
(161,144)
(520,021)

Total Operating Revenue

$

30,222,997

$

29,702,976

$

Total Non-Operating Revenue

$

8,702,323

$

8,702,323

$

TOTAL REVENUE

$ 38,925,320

$ 38,405,300

$

(520,021)

Transfer from Reserves
Transfer from Capital Improvement Fund

$

5,065,143

$

374,230
5,065,143

$

374,230
-

Total Other Sources of Funds

$

5,065,143

$

5,439,373

$

374,230

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

$ 43,990,464

$ 43,844,673

$

(145,791)

-

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS
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Fiscal Year 2022 and Beyond Impacts
Both the District rate increase and SDCWA pass-through that was to occur on January 1, 2021
would have generated revenue for the remainder of FY21, but would have also generated revenue
in FY22 and beyond. The TM assumes that the January 1, 2022 District increase of 3% will be
implemented, along with a full SDCWA pass-through. Forgoing the January 1, 2021 District rate
adjustment will reduce potable water sales revenues by a total of approximately $770,000 (TM
table 7, table 8), while forgoing the January 1, 2021 SDCWA pass-through will reduce water sales
reveues by an additional approximate $230,000 (TM table 14).
CONCLUSION:
Staff committed to returning annually to the Board during cost-of-service development to evaluate
the current financial condition of the District and determine if approved rate increases were
necessary and to what extent. Based upon the current financial position of the District, Staff is
recommending to forgo the District January 1, 2021 increase and SDCWA pass-through. All
projections included in this memo are based on the FY21 Budget, whose projections were
completed in May. Staff will be returning to the Board in February with an updated FY21 Budget
projection that will provide a more updated look at projected FY21 performance and the level of
potential reserve utilization.
This requested action is independent of any future action the Board may take to offset imported
water costs from SDCWA by utilizing fund balance available in the Staff proposed Local Water
Reserve addition to the District Policy.
FISCAL IMPACT:
The FY21 Budget impact from this item is estimated to be an approximate $516,000 decrease in
potable water revenues, which will necessitate an approximate $374,000 utilization of reserves.
Prepared by:
Approved by:

Seth M. Gates, Administrative Services Manager
Albert C. Lau, P.E., General Manager

Attachment A: Carollo Technical Memorandum
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ATTACHMENT A

Financial Model Update – TM
Santa Fe Irrigation District
November
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Purpose
The purpose of this technical memorandum (“TM”) is to provide the Santa Fe Irrigation District (“SFID” or
“the District”) with a summary of the analysis performed by Carollo Engineers, Inc. (“Carollo”) as a part of
the
Financial Model Update. The analyses covered in this TM include the following.
. The financial impact if the District does not implement the previously recommended percent
revenue increase on January ,
.
. The financial impact of not passing‐through the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA)
calendar year (CY)
rate increase onto the District’s customers.

1.

Impact of No Revenue Increase in CY2021

If SFID elects to forgo a percent revenue increase on January ,
, the District will maintain their
existing rates as summarized in Table , Table , and Table below.
Table

Variable Rates by Customer Class

Customer Class
Single Family Residential
Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
Tier
Multi‐Family Residential
Non‐Residential
Irrigation/Agriculture
Temporary

Existing Variable
Rates ( /HCF)

Recommended
Variable Rates
$2.57
$3.46
$5.03
$5.47
$6.60
$5.34
$4.99
$6.29
$6.22

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
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Table

Meter
Size
/ "
/ "
"
/ "
"
"
"
"
"
"
Table

Meter
Size
/ "
/ "
"
/ "
"
"
"
"
"
"

Bi‐monthly Potable Fixed Charges

Existing Bi‐monthly Potable
Fixed Charges ( /Account)
$82.85
$82.85
$130.83
$242.77
$418.69
$770.51
$1,314.24
$2,401.69
$4,160.81
$6,239.77

Recommended
Bi‐
monthly Potable Fixed
Charges
$85.69
$85.69
$135.32
$251.11
$433.08
$797.00
$1,359.43
$2,484.28
$4,303.90
$6,454.36

Recommended
Bi‐
monthly Potable Fixed
Charges
.
.
.
.
.
.
,
.
,
.
, .
,
.

Bi‐monthly Irrigation/Agriculture Fixed Charges

Existing Bi‐monthly
Irrigation Fixed Charges
( /Account)
$74.42
$74.42
$117.34
$217.48
$374.85
$689.58
$1,175.99
$2,148.79
$3,722.45
$5,582.23

Recommended
Bi‐
monthly Irrigation Fixed
Charges
$76.94
$76.94
$121.32
$224.86
$387.58
$713.00
$1,215.93
$2,221.78
$3,848.90
$5,771.86

Recommended
Bi‐
monthly Irrigation Fixed
Charges
.
.
.
.
.
.
, .
, .
,
.
,
.

The projected demand by customer class for FY
, FY
, and FY
is shown in Table . A
comparison of forecasted variable rate and fixed charge revenues for FY
under existing rates and
previously recommended
rates are presented in Table and Table . A comparison of forecasted
variable rate and fixed charge revenues for FY
under existing rates and previously recommended
rates are presented in Table and Table . A comparison of forecasted variable rate and fixed charge
revenues for the first bills of FY
under recommended
rates and previously recommended
and
rates are presented in Table and Table . FY
and FY
previously proposed rates
include percent revenue increases.
The difference in revenues under each scenario represents the revenue lost by the District with no revenue
increase on January ,
. The combined total revenue difference for all water sales is estimated to be
approximately
,
in FY
,
,
in FY
, and
,
for the first half of FY
. The
combined total revenue difference is , ,
between the second half of FY
and the first half of FY
.
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Table

Projected Demand by Customer Class

Customer Class
Single Family Residential
Multifamily Residential
Non‐Residential
Irrigation/Agriculture
Temporary
Total Projected Demand
Table

Single Family Residential
Multifamily Residential
Non‐Residential
Irrigation/ Agriculture
Temporary
Total Variable Rates

Potable
Irrigation/Agriculture
Total Fixed Rates

FY
Projected Revenue
under Existing Rates
, ,
, ,
,
,
,
,
,
,

FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
,
,
, ,
,
, ,
,
,
,

Difference
(

,
( ,
( ,
( ,
(
(
,

)
)
)
)
)
)

FY
Projected Revenue
under Existing Rates
,
,
,
,
,

FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
, ,
,
,
,

Difference
( ,
( ,
( ,

)
)
)

Projected Variable Rate Revenues – FY

Customer Class
Single Family Residential
Multifamily Residential
Non‐Residential
Irrigation/ Agriculture
Temporary
Total Variable Rates
Table

Projected FY
Usage (HCF)
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
HCF

Projected Fixed Charge Revenues – FY

Customer Class

Table

Projected FY
Usage (HCF)
, ,
,
,
,
,
,
,
HCF

Projected Variable Rate Revenues – FY

Customer Class

Table

Projected FY
Usage (HCF)
, ,
,
,
,
,
,
,
HCF

FY
Projected Revenue
under Existing Rates
,
,
, ,
,
,
,
,
,
,

FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,

Difference
(

,
,
,
,
,
,

)
)
)
)
)
)

,
( ,
(
,

)
)
)

(
(
(
(
(

Projected Fixed Charge Revenues – FY

Customer Class
Potable
Irrigation/Agriculture
Total Fixed Rates

FY
Projected Revenue
under Existing Rates
, ,
,
,
,

FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
, ,
,
,
,
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Table

Projected Variable Rate Revenues – FY

Customer Class
Single Family Residential
Multifamily Residential
Non‐Residential
Irrigation/ Agriculture
Temporary
Total Variable Rates
Table

Projected Fixed Charge Revenues – FY

Customer Class
Potable
Irrigation/Agriculture
Total Fixed Rates

Table
Table

FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
,
,
,
,
,
,
, ,
FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
, ,
,
,
,

(first bills, only)

FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,

Difference
(first bills, only)
(

,
( ,
( ,
( ,
(
(
,

)
)
)
)
)
)

(first bills, only)

FY
Projected Revenue
under Rec.
Rates
, ,
,
,
,

Difference
(first bills, only)
(

,
( ,
( ,

summarizes the impact to the District of not implementing the recommended CY

)
)
)

rates.

Summary of Projected Revenues

Fiscal Year
FY
FY
( )
FY
Total Projected Revenue
Notes:
( ) Only first bills of FY

Projected Revenue
No
Increase
, ,
,
,
,
,
,
,

Projected Revenue
COSS Rates
,
,
, ,
,
,
,
,

Difference
(
(
(
( ,

,
,
,
,

)
)
)
)

are included due to anticipated adoption of recommendations from future cost of service study.
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2.

Impact of Absorbing SDCWA CY 2021 Rate Increase

By opting to absorb the adopted SDCWA CY
rate increase, SFID would not pass through these
additional charges to its customers. This would result in an unrecovered incremental cost to the District. The
existing CY
and adopted CY
SDCWA rates are summarized in Table .
Table
CY
and CY
SDCWA Rates and Charges
Rate Component
CY
Customer Service ( M)
.
Storage ( M)
.
Supply Reliability ( M)
.
Infrastructure Access Charge ( /MEU)
.
Treated Water ( /AF)
,
Untreated Water ( /AF)
,
MWD Capacity Charge ( M)
.
MWD Readiness‐to‐Serve ( M)
.
Notes:
( ) Rates effective January ,

( )

CY
.
.
.
.
,
,
.
.

.

The costs absorbed by SFID include fixed costs and variable costs for treated and untreated water purchases.
Tables , , and present the forecasted SDCWA variable costs for FY
, FY
, and FY
,
respectively, that would be recovered under the two scenarios – ( ) SFID does not pass through the SDCWA
CY
rates and charges and ( ) SFID does pass through the SDCWA CY
rates and charges, and
subsequently passes on all SDCWA charges on January ,
and January ,
. If SFID were to absorb
SDCWA’s CY
rate increase, the District’s unrecovered incremental costs would total approximately
,
in FY
,
,
in FY
, and
,
in FY
. In total, between January ,
, and
January ,
, the District would have approximately
,
in incremental variable costs from SDCWA
that would not be passed through to its customers in their rates.
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Table

Variable SDCWA Costs – FY

Projected FY
SDCWA Variable
Costs

Demand
(AF)( )

Treated Water
Untreated Water

,
Total

Notes:
( ) Based on FY

Table

,

,
,

AF

,
,
,

FY
With SDCWA
Pass‐through
,
,

Difference

,
,
,

( ,
( ,
(
,

)
)
)

budget.

Variable SDCWA Costs – FY

Projected FY
SDCWA Variable
Costs

Demand
(AF)( )

Treated Water
Untreated Water

AF demand, ,

Projected FY
Demand (AF)

Treated Water
Untreated Water

,
,

Total
Notes:
( ) Only first half of FY

,
,

,
,
,

FY
With SDCWA
Pass‐through
,
,

Difference

,
,
,

(
(
(

,
,
,

)
)
)

AF local water, and . % non‐revenue water.

Variable SDCWA Costs – FY

SDCWA Variable
Costs

FY
No SDCWA Pass‐
through

,
,

Total
Notes:
( ) Based on ,

Table

FY
No SDCWA Pass‐
through

( )

FY
No SDCWA Pass‐
through
,
, ,
,
,

FY
With SDCWA
Pass‐through
,
, ,
,
,

Difference
( ,
,
(
,
(

)
)
)

is included due to anticipated adoption of recommendations from future cost of service study.

Because the fixed costs are assessed in different ways (e.g., per MEU, ‐year rolling average), the ratio of the
CY
charge to the CY
charge was applied to the second half of the FY
budget to estimate the
FY
budget without passing through the SDCWA CY
rates and charges. For FY
and FY
,
that ratio was applied to the entire projected cost. Table and Table below show the projected
recovered costs under both scenarios and the difference between the two for each of the fixed charges.
Table

Fixed SDCWA Costs – FY

SDCWA Fixed Costs
Customer Service
Storage
Supply Reliability
Infrastructure Access Charge
MWD Capacity Charge
MWD Readiness‐to‐Serve
Total

FY
No SDCWA Pass‐through
,

,

,
,
,
,
,
,
,
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With SDCWA Pass‐
through
,
, ,
,
,
,
,
,
,

Difference

,
( ,
( ,
( ,
,
( ,

)
)
)
)
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Table

Fixed SDCWA Costs – FY

FY
No SDCWA Pass‐through

SDCWA Fixed Costs
Customer Service
Storage
Supply Reliability
Infrastructure Access Charge
MWD Capacity Charge
MWD Readiness‐to‐Serve
Total

,

,

,
,
,
,
,
,
,

FY
With SDCWA Pass‐
through
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,

Difference

,
( ,
( ,
( ,
,
(
,

)
)
)
)

The model does not assume increases for SDCWA rates and charges beyond what has been adopted by
SDCWA’s Board of Directors and does not project changes to the rolling averages. As such, the projected
difference in costs to SFID between the two scenarios is the same for FY
as FY
. However, because
this analysis only includes the first half of FY
, the impact is reduced by half.
Table summarizes the total unrecovered cost as a result of not passing through the adopted SDCWA CY
rates and charges to the District’s customers.
Table

Summary of Projected Incremental SDCWA Costs

Fiscal Year
FY
FY
FY

( )

Total Projected Costs
Notes:
( ) Only first half of FY

Projected Costs
No Pass‐through
, ,
, ,
,
,
,
,

Projected Costs
With Pass‐through
, ,
,
,
, ,
,
,

Difference
(
(
(
(

,
,
,
,

)
)
)
)

is included due to anticipated adoption of recommendations from future cost of service study.
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DATE:

November 10, 2020

TO:

Administrative and Finance Committee

FROM:

General Manager

SUBJECT:

Recommennd Board Approval of the Revised Santa Fe Irrigation District
Reserve Policy

RECOMMENDATION:
It is the Staff recommendation that the Administrative and Finance Committee:
1. Review and discuss the prpoposed Reserve Policy and Reserve Levels; and
2. Recommend Board Approval of the Revised Santa Fe Irrigation District Reserve Policy
and Establish Reserve Levels; and
3. Discuss and take other action as appropriate.
BACKGROUND:
Staff has been engaging the Santa Fe Irrigation District Board of Directors (Board) on proposed
revisions to the District’s Reserve Policy (Policy); mostly recently at the October 27, 2020 special
meeting of the Administrative and Finance Committee. During this most recent meeting, the
Committee provided input in regards to the proposed Policy and requested that Staff make certain
revisions and return to the regular Administrative and Finance Committee November meeting to
review these proposed changes.
DISCUSSION:
Input and requested revisions provided to Staff at the special Committee meeting of Ocotber 27,
2020 meeting are summarized as follows:






Revise the language of the Local Water Fund to reflect the Committee’s preference to
utilize any available fund balance on an annual basis;
Review Policy maximum reserve level recommendations for potential revision
downwards;
Provide a justification for Staff recommended reserve levels between Policy minimum
and maximum levels;
Provide an estimate for funding of the Local Water Fund;
Additional minor language edits.

Based on this input, Staff has made changes to the Policy to incorporate this feedback and
requested revisions. Revisions by Staff include:
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Revised the Local Water Fund language to add the sentence, “The goal of the Board is
to return any fund balance to customers each January 1st; however, the Board may
modify this timeline if necessary.”;
Provide an estimate of a Local Water Fund contribution (as outlined below);
Reduced the maximum reserve level for the Capital and Replacement Fund and Rate
Stabilization Fund and provided additional detail on Staff recommended levels (as
outlined below and summarized in Attachment C).

Revisions to Maximum Policy Levels and Recommendations
Capital and Replacement Fund
The Capital and Replacement Fund’s maximum reserve level was reduced from the full 10-year
capital plan, as previously adopted by the Board, to a maximum level of 100% of the Pay-Go
amount for the first 3 years of the District’s 10-year capital plan. This reduction will still allow
for the Board to be proactive in possibly setting aside funding for any large capital projects that
may be upcoming. Staff’s recommendation is still to maintain the minimum level of reserve
funding as the level is sufficient to continue projects and award contracts over multiple fiscal years
based on the current District 10-year capital plan. Additionally, the Board’s intent to continue
funding this reserve through depreciation and property taxes provides a steady and reliable funding
source to allow the minimum reserve to be maintained.
Staff does not foresee recommending increasing this reserve level above the minimum level;
however, a number of factors may change this. These factors include the potential replacement of
Lake Hodges dam and the District’s required contribution, outcomes in the development of the
updated asset management master plan for District and Joint Facilities assets, and the continued
inflation of construction costs above developed estimates, among others.
Operating Fund
Staff is not proposing to modify previous recommendations for the minimum, maximum, and
target funding levels for the Operating Fund. Reserve level recommendations from various entities
that provide best practice guidance range between a minimum of 45 to a maximum of 180 days.
Recommendations from some of these organizations are as follows:
Organization

Recommendation / Guidance

Government Finance Officers Association

Water Environment Federation
American Water Works Association

Start with a baseline of ninety (90) days worth
of working capital and then adjust the target
based on the particular characteristics of the
enterprise fund in question (using 45 days as
the minimum acceptable level)
Minimum 3 months ‐ industry recommended 6
months
Generally within the range of 2 to 12 months of
operating expenses
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A reserve level is also dependent on a number of factors, such as risk in operating expense
variability, revenue / payment variability (including collection ability), availability of other
reserves, and credit rating objectives, among many others.
Operating expenditures are defined as total budgeted expenditures less depreciation / amortization
and any expenditures that are incurred on behalf of San Dieguito Water District (which are
reimbursed). This recommendation is based on industry guidelines, taking into account that the
District faces significant risk of natural disasters (i.e., wildfire and earthquake) that can disrupt
revenues and also force the District to incur significant costs to restore and / or maintain service
levels. Additionally, the District’s revenues from water sales are approximately 21% fixed and
79% variable. The average for Southern California water providers are 34% fixed and 66%
variable, which exposes the District to additional revenue risk to comparable agencies. However,
the District has other reserves to accommodate for capital and other unforeseen circumstances that
may mitigate the need to retain additional funds.
Taking these items into account, the minimum recommendation of 60 days falls on the low end of
guidelines. Based on this, setting the operating fund at minimum levels should possibly be done
only in combination with other reserves being above minimum levels. The maximum of 120 days
is based on industry guidelines and recognizing the fact that an emergency the District faces would
necessitate costly unanticipated expenditures and hinder the District’s ability to collect revenues
during the intervening time period. Staff recommended funding level of 90 days is based on the
recognition of availability of these other reserves, significant potential of natural disaster, and
industry best practices.
Rate Stabilization Fund
The Rate Stabilization Fund is primarily utilized to offset a reduction in water sales and / or local
water availability, and is commonly used to augment debt service coverage ratios (and is typically
a requirement in any indenture agreement). The Fund’s minimum and maximum levels have been
reduced from previous recommended levels.
The minimum level, which was previously
recommended to be the aggregate of one year of debt payment plus one year of funding to replace
local water, has been reduced to one year of funding to replace local water. The provision for one
year of debt service can be eliminated based on the typical requirement of any indenture agreement
for a one year debt service reserve held with a separate trustee. Though this amount held with the
trustee is only an insurance provision and cannot be utilized to augment debt service coverage
ratios, it is not anticipated that the District will face any coverage issues in the near future due to
no current indebtedness and strong financial position.
The Fund’s maximum has been reduced from the aggregate of: two years of debt payments, two
years of local water replacement, and 25% of variable water revenue; to the aggregate of: one year
of debt payments, one year of local water replacement, and 25% of variable water revenue. This
reduction to debt payments is for the same reason as previously stated, but with the Policy’s
flexibility to include a set-aside for coverage provisions of any amount up to one year of debt
payments based on the potential in the future for taking on debt for Lake Hodges dam or other
purposes. Additionally, the reduction in local water replacement to one year is reflective of the
more conservative cost-of-service local water assumptions the Board has previously implemented;
however, an extended drought may necessitate replacing a greater volume of local water with
imported water. The final portion of the maximum aggregate, a 25% reserve of the District’s
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variable water revenue, is unchanged. This represents the future potential for mandated reductions
as previously experienced by the District. The Board may elect to implement drought rates, if
continued to be included in the District’s Proposition 218 Notice, and / or utilize this source of
funding to accommodate any such potential action.
Staff is not proposing to modify the recommended Rate Stabilization Fund level at one year of
local water replacement plus 5% of variable water sales revenues. This level, approximately $1.0
million above proposed minimum Policy levels, reflects the continued variability in local water
yield (combined with the Department of Safety of Dams level restriction) and impacts climate
change may have on water sales volumes.
Contribution to Local Water Fund
During the most February 2020 cost-of-service development, the Board requested Staff work
toward the implementation of a Local Water Fund, which is proposed to be created in the updated
Policy. Staff’s recommendation for funding of the Local Water Fund is based on results for FY20.
Due to excess local water utilized in FY20 above levels utilized to set rates, a contribution may be
made to the fund. The proposed contribution is calculated as $385,362; the calculation for which
is as follows:
1. Total local water utilized and associated costs
Total AF of SFID Local Water

3,403.5

A

Local Water Costs
Pumping - Cielo
Pumping - SDR
Local Water O&M
Pumps & Equipment
Lake Testing
Other
Total Local Water Costs

445,855
423,760
133,752
109,525
28,130
87,748
$

1,228,770

SFID Share %

57.33%

SFID Local Water Cost

$

704,454

Cost of Local Water per AF

$

207

B
C=B/A

2. Cost of San Diego County Water Authority imported water
$ / AF
Transportation Rate
Supply Rate
Standby Charge
Total Cost Per AF
Cost per AF of SDCWA FY20

July - December
120
909
10

January - June
132
925
10

$

1,039 A $

$

1,053 D =(A+B)/2

Agenda page 31

1,067 B

Admin & Finance Committee
November 10, 2020

3. Price difference per AF
Variance Per AF

$

846 E = D-C

4. Local water included in rates charged for FY20, excess local water, and contribution
Raftelis Study
Carollo Study
July - January
February - June
3,268.0 A
2,500.0 B

AF Local Water Included in Rates
AF Average Local Water in FY20

2,948.0 F= (A*(7/12)) + (B*(5/12))

Total AF of SFID Local Water

3,403.5 C

Excess Above Local Water in Rates

455.5 G=C-F

CONTRIBUTION

$

385,362 H=G*E

The Local Water Fund contribution is based on positive local water above the amount included in
the rate setting process, which is only the second time in the last five years. As shown in the
following table, local water in FY16 and FY17 were over 1,300 AF below the amounts utilized in
rates. Low water demand due to the Governor’s mandate in addition to a decline in local water
volume reduced total reserves inb FY16 by $3.4 million (from $27.2 million in FY15) and required
a transfer from the Rate Stabilization Fund to maintain water rates. Additionally, the low local
water volume (among other items) in FY17 led to a further $6.1 million decline in overall reserves
to $17.8 million. Conversely, in FY18, positive local water in addition to higher than projected
overall water demand led to an increase in reserves and the Rate Stabilization Fund. Cumulatively,
over the last five years, all customers have received an excess of local water built into their rates
than what actually occurred (by approximately 1,697 AF overall). This was a contributing factor
into why the assumption was made for a reduced local water yield assumption in the January 2020
Board approved cost-of-service, to 2,500 AF.
FY16
1,881
3,268
(1,387)
(1,387)

Amounts in AF
Local Water Yield
Cost of Service Assumption
Variance
Cumulative Variance
Total Water Demand

FY17
1,911
3,268
(1,357)
(2,744)

FY18
4,636
3,268
1,368
(1,377)

FY19
2,492
3,268
(776)
(2,152)

8,009

9,360

10,482

8,982

509,706 $

3,180,207 $

4,356,556 $

4,356,556 $

FY20
3,404
2,948
456
(1,697)
9,078

Rate Stabilization*

$

4,334,595

Total Reserves*

$ 23,824,022 $ 17,768,091 $ 23,240,621 $ 27,145,725 $ 30,452,505

*Proposed 2020

Local water over the last five years has been at a deficit, and has been subsequently accommodated
through the Rate Stabilization Fund / other reserves, benefiting all ratepayers. The District has
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previously utilized local water (among other sources) to fund the Rate Stabilization Fund to
accommodate this deficit (and other reserves). Beginning in FY20, the Board is presumed to
establish the Local Water Fund, which will segregate these revenues.
Additionally, a contributing factor to the increase in reserves has been the variance in projected
(cost-of-service) versus actual spend on capital improvement projects, as shown in the following
table.
Cost of Service CIP Spend

FY16
8,241,813

FY17
9,012,485

FY18
11,902,768

FY19
12,137,135

FY20
6,592,000

Actual CIP Spend

3,952,441

7,503,591

2,814,597

3,914,812

1,625,021

Variance

$

(4,289,372) $

(1,508,894) $

(9,088,171) $

(8,222,323) $

(4,966,979)

Capital spending has lagged projected levels due to a number of reasons, including the Board
approved intentional delay of capital projects due to the decline in water sales and associated
revenues and reserves in 2016 and 2017. Additionally, certain capital projects were intentionally
delayed to apply for grant funding, which was subsequently awarded / received. This difference,
especially in FY18-FY20 has resulted in an increase in reserves. Capital spending is funded by all
ratepayers through various means, including the customer fixed charge, property tax receipts, and
potable water rates. However, as planned capital projects are implemented, it is projected that the
overall fund balance will decrease.
As shown, the increase in total reserves and any available District assets above Board approved
reserve levels have been due to a variety of factors. The increase in total reserves of approximately
$12.7 million from FY16 has not been primarily due to local water, but due to years where there
was an increase water sold and years of reduced capital spending (among others), which are
attributable to all ratepayers. Based on this, Staff is proposing to fund the Local Water Fund with
FY20 local water benefit as previously calculated and any positive local water above the more
conservative level included in potable rates going forward.
CONCLUSION:
Any input received from the Administrative and Finance Committee on these proposed changes to
the Policy will be incorporated into a final revision that will then be forwarded to the full Board
for review and requested adoption. The recommended reserve levels included in Attachment C
are current Staff proposed levels; however, the total available resources and resulting District
assets above these recommended levels are un-audited. These funds above the Board adopted total
reserve level will be available for review and discussion during the adoption of the District’s
annual audit in December, as required by the Policy.
Attachment A to this memo outlines as changes to the Policy from the prior version adopted by
the Board. Attachment C to this memo outlines the proposed revised minimum and maximum
balances.
FISCAL IMPACT:
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Though there is no fiscal impact attributable to this item, adoption of a comprehensive Policy and
funding of each reserve conveys the financial health of the District to ratepayers and other
stakeholders. Additionally, adoption of the Policy and funding of reserves will determine the
amount of District assets available above reserve levels to be utilized for Board determined
purposes for the benefit of District ratepayers.
Prepared by:
Approved by:

Seth M. Gates, Administrative Services Manager
Albert C. Lau, P.E., General Manager

Attachment A: Santa Fe Irrigation District Proposed Reserve Policy – Redline Copy
Attachment B: Santa Fe Irrigation District Proposed Reserve Policy – Clean Copy
Attachment C: Santa Fe Irrigation District Proposed Reserve Levels
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ATTACHMENT A

SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

RESERVE FUNDS POLICY
January 2010
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SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESERVE FUNDS POLICY
1. Policy Statement
A key element of prudent financial planning is to ensure that sufficient funding is available
for current and future operating, capital, and debt service needs. Additionally, fiscal
responsibility requires anticipating the likelihood of and preparing for unforeseen events.
Through planning and undertaking regular cost-of-service review, Tthe Santa Fe Irrigation
District (District) will at all times strive to have sufficient funding available generated from
current revenues to meet its operating expenditures, capital, , pPay-gGo (defined below in
section 4) for capital projects, and debt service cost obligations. Funds will be accumulated
and maintained to allow the District to fund expenditures in a manner consistent with all
District Master Plans and avoid significant rate fluctuations due to changes in cash flow
requirements. Additionally, fiscal responsibility requires anticipating the likelihood of and
preparing for unforeseen events. This Reserves Funds Policy outlines specific accounts to
meet these planned and unforeseen obligations.
The Board of Directors (Board) may designate specific fund accounts and maintain
minimum fund balances consistent with statutory obligations that it has determined to be in
the best interest of the District. The Policy directives outlined in this document are intended
to ensure the District has sufficient funds to meet current and future needs. The Board of
Directors will annually review the level of Fundsand approve reserve amounts for each fund
at the completion of the District annual audit.
2. Definitions
There are two types of net Funds:
I.

RESTRICTED FUNDS: Restrictions on the use of these funds are imposed by an
outside source such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations
governing use.

II.

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS: These funds have no externally imposed use
restrictions. The use of Unrestricted unrestricted Funds funds is at the discretion of
the Board of Directors. Unrestricted Funds funds are can be designated for a specific
purpose, which is determined by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
also has the authority to redirect the use of these funds as the needs of the District
change.

3. General Provisions
The District will maintain operating and capital funds in designated accounts. The target
fund balances are considered the minimum necessary to maintain the District’s credit
worthiness and adequately provide for:
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Compliance with applicable statutory requirements
Financing of future capital facilities
Cash flow requirements
Economic uncertainties, local disasters, and other financial hardships or downturns
in the local or national economy
Contingencies or unforeseen operating or capital needs



Through a variety of policy documents and plans, including the District Administrative
Code, District Master Plans, Long Range Financial Plans, and District Strategic Plan, the
Board of Directors has set forth a number of long-term goals for the District. A fundamental
purpose of the District’s policy documents and plans is to link what must be accomplished
with the necessary resources to successfully do so.
The District has established and will maintain the following Fund accounts:





Capacity Charge
Capital Improvement and Replacement
Operating
Rate Stabilization



F

Actual fund balances will be reviewed on an annual basis at the close of the fiscal year the
completion of the District’s annual audit to reconcile the fund balances and assess the
District’s financial capacity to accomplish identified activities and projects. In the event
the Rate Stabilization Fund or Operating Fund balances exceed the established maximum
targets, excess monies will be transferred annually into the Capital Improvement Fund. In
the event the Capital Improvement Fund balance exceeds the established maximum target,
the Board of Directors will make a determination regarding the reallocation of excess
monies.
The minimum target balance established for each Ffund represents the baseline financial
condition that is acceptable to the District from a risk management and financial planning
perspective. Maintaining Ffunds at appropriate levels is an ongoing business process that
consists of a periodic assessment of revenues and expenditure levels. This assessment
includes (either alone or in combination with each other), but is not limited to, a review of
fees and charges, water usage, capital financing methods, rate of return on investment of
funds, and levels of capital expenditures. A maximum balance is established for each fund
as a way to ensure that the District may prioritize capitalization of each reserve as the Board
may see as necessary and prudent, while not holding excess monies that may unduly impact
ratepayers.
The Board of Directors shall approve any reallocation of funds or any transfers among
Funds, including an annual reconciliation at the close of the fiscal year.
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4. Santa Fe Irrigation District Funds
I.

RESTRICTED FUNDS

a. Capacity Charge Fund: The Capacity Charge Fund is a Restricted Fund governed by
state law. The District collects capacity charge revenue and allocates expenditures in
accordance with Government Code Section § 66013.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Interest income on Fund balance

Capacity Charge revenues
Designation of Expenses:

Growth/expansion related Capital capital Improvementsimprovements

System upgrades/enhancements
II.

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
The source of funds for each of the listed unrestricted fund may come from any other
unrestricted fund as seen fit by the Board of Directors, so long as maximum Policy
levels are not exceeded.

a. Capital Improvement and Replacement Fund: The Capital Improvement and
Replacement Fund is an Unrestricted unrestricted Fundfund, which is designated by the
Board of Directors for capital improvements to meet regulatory requirements, system
reliability, facility replacement projects, and future infrastructure upgrades, among
other items. These capital improvements are identified in the Asset Management Master
Plan (“AMMP”) and outlined in the District’s (including joint facilities) ten-year Capital
Improvement Program . The funds are accumulated and drawn down in a manner
consistent with this Policy. The Board of Directors approves reviews utilization and
funding of the Capital Improvement and Replacement Funds during the District’s
annual budget process and updated during District mid-year projections. It is the
Board’s intent to annually deposit all property tax revenues and an amount equal to the
District’s total annual depreciation and amortization into the fund for pPay-gGo of
capital expenditures, in combination with any additional amount(s) as determined by
the Board.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Allocation of funds by Board of Directors’ action

Annual contribution from Ooperating Rrevenue in an amount equal to
depreciation and amortization expense

San Dieguito Water District (SDWD) contributions – RE Badger Capital capital
Expensesexpenses

Interest Income from any of the Unrestricted Funds
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Property Ttax revenue

Designation of Expenses / Uses:

Capital Iimprovement Pprojects

Capital Rrepairs and Rreplacement Pprojects

Major equipment acquisitions

Office fixtures and furnishings, computer equipment and collateral items

Emergency capital repairs and replacement
Target Fund Balance: The Capital Improvement and Replacement Fund target balance
shall not exceed 100% of the total of the Pay-Go portion of the first three years of the
current ten-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) costs as identified in the Asset
Management Master Plan. The Capital Improvement Fund target balance shall at all
times equal or exceed 100% of the Pay-Go portion of the current fiscal year’s CIP, 50%
of the Pay-Go portion of the following fiscal year’s CIP, and 25% of the Pay-Go portion
of the succeeding fiscal year’s CIP.
Pay-Go is defined as the portion of capital expenditures that are not funded through debt
issuance.
b. Operating Fund : The Operating Fund is an Unrestricted Fund that is designated by
the Board of Directors to maintain working capital for current operations and to meet
routine cash flow needsin the event of unforeseen circumstances. Utilization of the
operating fund shall only be based on Board action, and any request by Staff to use the
fund that shall bring the reserve below minimum Reserve Funds Policy levels shall also
be accompanied by a plan and timeline for replenishment.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Allocation of funds by Board of Directors’ action

Transfers from Rate Stabilization Fund

Interest Income from any of the Unrestricted Funds

Net operating income
Designation of Expenses / Uses:

FCunding requirements due to ash flow requirementsshort term revenue and
expenditure imbalance

Intra-fiscal year cash flow timing without Board approval, so long as the fund
balance is not impaired by fiscal year-end

Transfers to Rate Stabilization Fund or Capital Improvement and Replacement
Fund

Debt Service
Target Fund Balance: The Operating Fund target balance shall be a minimum of sixty
(60) days and a maximum of ninety one hundred and twenty (90120) days of the current
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fiscal year’s operating budget, less depreciation / amortization and any portion of costs
paid by SDWD.
c. Rate Stabilization: The Rate Stabilization Fund is an Unrestricted Fund utilized to avoid
unacceptable rate increases in combination with a cost-of-service study. Additionally,
the fund may be utilized to accommodate a temporary reduction in revenues or increase
in expenses such as (but not limited to) and fund unanticipated operating expenditures.
short term reductions in water sales and / or the purchase of imported water due to lack
of local water. This fund may also be utilized to maintain compliance with any
indebtedness obligations. Utilization of the rate stabilization fund shall only be based
on Board action, and any request by Staff to use the fund that shall bring the reserve
below minimum Reserve Funds Policy levels shall also be accompanied by a plan and
timeline for replenishment.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Allocation of Funds funds by Board of Directors’ action

Net operating income
Interest Income from any of the Unrestricted Funds

Designation of Expenses / Uses:

Transfers to Operating Fund or Capital Improvement and Replacement Fund

Provide operating revenue to offset unacceptable rate increases

Contingencies, unforeseen operating needs or disruptions to revenues or service

Offset water sales revenue loss or sudden increase in expenses

Purchase of additional imported water to offset lack of local water

Compliance with debt service obligations

Target Fund Balance: The Rate Stabilization Fund target balance shall not exceed the
fall below the sum of the following:

100% of the current fiscal year’s budgeted property tax revenues

30% of the current fiscal year’s budgeted variable water sales revenues 100% of
the cost to replace the current fiscal year’s budget for local water with San Diego
County Water Authority (SDCWA) untreated water – calculated as the current
melded untreated M&I supply rate plus the transportation rate at the time of
reserve reconciliation

25% of the current fiscal year’s budgeted wholesale water costs
And shall not at any time be less than the exceed the sum of the following:

8% of the current fiscal year’s budgeted property tax revenuesOne year of
principal and interest payments on indebtedness

10% of the current fiscal year’s budgeted variable water sales revenues 100% of
the cost to replace the current fiscal year’s budget for local water with SDCWA
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untreated water – calculated as the current melded untreated M&I supply rate
plus the transportation rate at the time of reserve reconciliation
525% of the current fiscal year’s budgeted wholesale water costsvariable water
sales revenue

d. Local Water: The Local Water Fund is an Uunrestricted Ffund intended to segregate
expenditure savings that are generated due to a greater utilization of local water than
employedprojected to set potable water rates for customers. These savings deposited
into the Local Water Fund are generated through the rate(s) charged to potable water
customers who utilize tier(s) or a unitary rate that includes imported water. Any funds
deposited into thethis fund reserve will be returned to customers who utilizepurchase
water at imported water tier(s) or a unitary rate, through one of two means: 1. during
subsequent cost-of-service development to offset imported water costs for all tier(s) or
unitary rate that includes imported water for permanent potable water customers in a
way that is consistent with cost-of-service principals; or 2. to offset annual imported
water cost increase(s) from SDCWA that are passed on to District customers. The goal
of the Board is to return any fund balance to customers each January 1st; however, the
Board may modify this timeline if necessary.
Source of Funds:

Savings on purchased water from SDCWA as compared to projections utilized
to set potable water rates
Designation of Expenses / Uses:

Utilization to offset imported potable water costs for any customer class tier(s)
or uniform rate that includes such costs
Target Fund Balance: There is no minimum or maximum target balances for this fund.
5. Delegation of Authority
The Board of Directors of the Santa Fe Irrigation District has sole authority to amend or revise
the District’s Reserve Funds Policy. Management responsibility for the Reserve Funds Policy
is hereby delegated to the General Manager, who through approval of this Policy has
established written procedures for the management of the District’s Funds.
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ATTACHMENT B

SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

RESERVE FUNDS POLICY
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SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
RESERVE FUNDS POLICY
1. Policy Statement
A key element of prudent financial planning is to ensure that sufficient funding is available
for current and future operating, capital, and debt service needs. Through planning and
undertaking regular cost-of-service review, the Santa Fe Irrigation District (District) will at
all times strive to have sufficient funding generated from current revenues to meet its
operating expenditures, Pay-Go (defined below in section 4) for capital projects, and debt
service cost obligations. Additionally, fiscal responsibility requires anticipating the
likelihood of and preparing for unforeseen events. This Reserves Funds Policy outlines
specific accounts to meet these planned and unforeseen obligations.
The Board of Directors (Board) may designate specific fund accounts and maintain
minimum fund balances consistent with statutory obligations that it has determined to be in
the best interest of the District. The Policy directives outlined in this document are intended
to ensure the District has sufficient funds to meet current and future needs. The Board will
annually review and approve reserve amounts for each fund at the completion of the District
annual audit.
2. Definitions
There are two types of net Funds:
I.

RESTRICTED FUNDS: Restrictions on the use of these funds are imposed by an
outside source such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations
governing use.

II.

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS: These funds have no externally imposed use
restrictions. The use of unrestricted funds is at the discretion of the Board.
Unrestricted funds can be designated for a specific purpose, which is determined by
the Board. The Board also has the authority to redirect the use of these funds as the
needs of the District change.

3. General Provisions
The District will maintain operating and capital funds in designated accounts. The target
fund balances are considered the minimum necessary to maintain the District’s credit
worthiness and adequately provide for:




Compliance with applicable statutory requirements
Financing of future capital facilities
Cash flow requirements
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Economic uncertainties, local disasters, and other financial hardships or downturns
in the local or national economy
Contingencies or unforeseen operating or capital needs



Through a variety of policy documents and plans, including the District Administrative
Code, District Master Plans, Long Range Financial Plans, and District Strategic Plan, the
Board has set forth a number of long-term goals for the District. A fundamental purpose of
the District’s policy documents and plans is to link what must be accomplished with the
necessary resources to successfully do so.
The District has established and will maintain the following Fund accounts:





Capacity Charge
Capital Improvement and Replacement
Operating
Rate Stabilization

Fund balances will be reviewed on an annual basis at the completion of the District’s annual
audit to reconcile the fund balances and assess the District’s financial capacity to
accomplish identified activities and projects.
The minimum target balance established for each fund represents the baseline financial
condition that is acceptable to the District from a risk management and financial planning
perspective. Maintaining funds at appropriate levels is an ongoing business process that
consists of a periodic assessment of revenues and expenditure levels. This assessment
includes (either alone or in combination with each other), but is not limited to, a review of
fees and charges, water usage, capital financing methods, rate of return on investment of
funds, and levels of capital expenditures. A maximum balance is established for each fund
as a way to ensure that the District may prioritize capitalization of each reserve as the Board
may see as necessary and prudent, while not holding excess monies that may unduly impact
ratepayers.
4. Santa Fe Irrigation District Funds
I.

RESTRICTED FUNDS

a. Capacity Charge Fund: The Capacity Charge Fund is a Restricted Fund governed by
state law. The District collects capacity charge revenue and allocates expenditures in
accordance with Government Code Section § 66013.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Capacity Charge revenues
Designation of Expenses:

Growth/expansion related capital improvements
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II.

System upgrades/enhancements
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS

The source of funds for each of the listed unrestricted fund may come from any other
unrestricted fund as seen fit by the Board of Directors, so long as maximum Policy
levels are not exceeded.
a. Capital Improvement and Replacement Fund: The Capital Improvement and
Replacement Fund is an unrestricted fund, which is designated by the Board for capital
improvements to meet regulatory requirements, system reliability, facility replacement
projects, and future infrastructure upgrades, among other items. These capital
improvements are identified in the Asset Management Master Plan (“AMMP”) and
outlined in the District’s (including joint facilities) ten-year Capital Improvement
Program. The funds are accumulated and drawn down in a manner consistent with this
Policy. The Board reviews utilization and funding of the Capital Improvement and
Replacement Fund during the District’s annual budget process and updated during
District mid-year projections. It is the Board’s intent to annually deposit all property
tax revenues and an amount equal to the District’s total annual depreciation and
amortization into the fund for Pay-Go of capital expenditures, in combination with any
additional amount(s) as determined by the Board.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Allocation of funds by Board action

Annual contribution from operating revenue in an amount equal to depreciation
and amortization expense

San Dieguito Water District (SDWD) contributions – RE Badger capital
expenses

Property tax revenue
Designation of Expenses / Uses:

Capital improvement projects

Capital repairs and replacement projects

Major equipment acquisitions

Office fixtures and furnishings, computer equipment and collateral items

Emergency capital repairs and replacement
Target Fund Balance: The Capital Improvement and Replacement Fund target balance
shall not exceed 100% of the total of the Pay-Go portion of the first three years of the
current ten-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) costs as identified in the Asset
Management Master Plan. The Capital Improvement Fund target balance shall at all
times equal or exceed 100% of the Pay-Go portion of the current fiscal year’s CIP, 50%
of the Pay-Go portion of the following fiscal year’s CIP, and 25% of the Pay-Go portion
of the succeeding fiscal year’s CIP.
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Pay-Go is defined as the portion of capital expenditures that are not funded through debt
issuance.
b. Operating Fund: The Operating Fund is an Unrestricted Fund that is designated by the
Board to maintain working capital for current operations in the event of unforeseen
circumstances. Utilization of the operating fund shall only be based on Board action,
and any request by Staff to use the fund that shall bring the reserve below minimum
Reserve Funds Policy levels shall also be accompanied by a plan and timeline for
replenishment.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Allocation of funds by Board action

Net operating income
Designation of Expenses / Uses:

Funding requirements due to short term revenue and expenditure imbalance

Intra-fiscal year cash flow timing without Board approval, so long as the fund
balance is not impaired by fiscal year-end
Target Fund Balance: The Operating Fund target balance shall be a minimum of sixty
(60) days and a maximum of one hundred and twenty (120) days of the current fiscal
year’s operating budget, less depreciation / amortization and any portion of costs paid
by SDWD.
c. Rate Stabilization: The Rate Stabilization Fund is an Unrestricted Fund utilized to avoid
unacceptable rate increases in combination with a cost-of-service study. Additionally,
the fund may be utilized to accommodate a temporary reduction in revenues or increase
in expenses such as (but not limited to) short term reductions in water sales and / or the
purchase of imported water due to lack of local water. This fund may also be utilized
to maintain compliance with any indebtedness obligations. Utilization of the rate
stabilization fund shall only be based on Board action, and any request by Staff to use
the fund that shall bring the reserve below minimum Reserve Funds Policy levels shall
also be accompanied by a plan and timeline for replenishment.
Source of Funds:

Prior year ending balance carried forward

Allocation of funds by Board action

Net operating income
Designation of Expenses / Uses:

Provide operating revenue to offset unacceptable rate increases

Offset water sales revenue loss or sudden increase in expenses

Purchase of additional imported water to offset lack of local water

Compliance with debt service obligations
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Target Fund Balance: The Rate Stabilization Fund target balance shall not fall below
the sum of the following:

100% of the cost to replace the current fiscal year’s budget for local water with
San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) untreated water – calculated as
the current melded untreated M&I supply rate plus the transportation rate at the
time of reserve reconciliation
And shall not at any time exceed the sum of the following:

One year of principal and interest payments on indebtedness

100% of the cost to replace the current fiscal year’s budget for local water with
SDCWA untreated water – calculated as the current melded untreated M&I
supply rate plus the transportation rate at the time of reserve reconciliation

25% of the current fiscal year’s budgeted variable water sales revenue
d. Local Water: The Local Water Fund is an unrestricted fund intended to segregate
expenditure savings that are generated due to a greater utilization of local water than
projected to set potable water rates for customers. These savings deposited into the
Local Water Fund are generated through the rate(s) charged to potable water customers
who utilize tier(s) or a unitary rate that includes imported water. Any funds deposited
into this fund will be returned to customers who purchase water at imported water tier(s)
or a unitary rate, through one of two means: 1. during subsequent cost-of-service
development to offset imported water costs for all tier(s) or unitary rate that includes
imported water for permanent potable water customers in a way that is consistent with
cost-of-service principals; or 2. to offset annual imported water cost increase(s) from
SDCWA that are passed on to District customers. The goal of the Board is to return any
fund balance to customers each January 1st; however, the Board may modify this
timeline if necessary.
Source of Funds:

Savings on purchased water from SDCWA as compared to projections utilized
to set potable water rates
Designation of Expenses / Uses:

Utilization to offset imported potable water costs for any customer class tier(s)
or uniform rate that includes such costs
Target Fund Balance: There is no minimum or maximum target balances for this fund.
5. Delegation of Authority
The Board of the Santa Fe Irrigation District has sole authority to amend or revise the District’s
Reserve Funds Policy. Management responsibility for the Reserve Funds Policy is hereby
delegated to the General Manager, who through approval of this Policy has established written
procedures for the management of the District’s Funds.
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ATTACHMENT C
Reserve Policy Recommendations
(unaudited)
FUND
Capital and Replacement

Operating

Rate Stabilization

Local Water

MINIMUM
MAXIMUM
100% current year pay‐go CIP, 50% second year pay‐ 100% of pay‐go of current, second year, and third‐
go CIP, 25% third year pay‐go CIP
year CIP
$14,332,050
$24,457,900
60 days operating expenses

120 days operating expenses

$3,865,624

$7,731,248

PROPOSED FUNDING
Minimum Balance ‐
$14,332,050
90 Operating Days ‐
$5,798,436

One year of local water replacement with imported One year of debt payment + one year of local water One year local water & 5%
variable water ‐
water
replacement + 25% of variable water revenue
$4,334,595
$3,324,000
$8,392,319
Board Determined

Board Determined

$385,362

Unassigned Funds

$5,602,062

TOTAL FUNDS

$30,452,505

Agenda page 48

Admin & Finance Committee
November 10, 2020

ENCLOSURE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of the Santa Fe Irrigation District
Rancho Santa Fe, California

Report on Financial Statements

0
2
0

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Santa Fe Irrigation District, California (the “District”),
which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the basic
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

0
.
1

2
.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

D

F
A
R

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in financial position, and cash flows
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
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To the Board of Directors
of the Santa Fe Irrigation District
Page 2
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of
Contributions – CalPERS Pension Plan, the Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and the
Schedule of Contributions – Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan on pages 17 through 27 and 73 through 76, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

0
2
0

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The Introductory Section, Combining Schedule of Net Position,
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Supplementary Schedule of Net Position –
R.E. Badger Filtration Plan, Supplementary Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – R.E.
Badger Filtration Plan, Supplementary Reconciliation of Billings – R.E. Badger Filtration Plan, and Statistical
Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

D

The Combining Schedule of Net Position, Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position,
Supplementary Schedule of Net Position – R.E. Badger Filtration Plan, Supplementary Schedule of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position – R.E. Badger Filtration Plan, Supplementary Reconciliation of Billings –
R.E. Badger Filtration Plan, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The Introductory Section and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.
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To the Board of Directors
of the Santa Fe Irrigation District
Page 3
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November XX, 2020 on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

San Diego, California
November XX, 2020
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors
of the Santa Fe Irrigation District
Rancho Santa Fe, California
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We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Santa Fe Irrigation District, California (the “District”),
which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the basic
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November XX, 2020.

1
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

D

0
.
1

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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To the Board of Directors
of the Santa Fe Irrigation District
Page 2
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

San Diego, California
November XX, 2020
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020

2019

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable - water sales, net
Accounts receivable - other
Property taxes and assessments collectible
Interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and deposits

$

Total current assets

33,587,609
4,022,728
563,168
25,968
90,636
546,744
69,607

0
2
0

$

27,145,725
3,789,869
397,181
18,395
154,923
435,708
59,681

38,906,460

32,001,482

4,849,618
76,558,903

2,990,874
79,139,695

81,408,521

82,130,569

427,651
-

429,863
1,500,974

81,836,172

84,061,406

120,742,632

116,062,888

Pension-related deferred outflows of resources
OPEB-related deferred outflows of resources

2,615,346
797,562

2,568,085
574,832

Total deferred outflows of resources

3,412,908

3,142,917

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, depreciable/amortizable, net

F
A
R

Reimbursement agreement receivable - San Elijo JPA
Due from R.E. Badger Water Facilities Financing Authority
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

D
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Capital assets, net

2
.
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DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

(Continued)

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Statements of Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020

2019

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue
Interest payable
Customer deposits
Compensated absences, current portion
Installment purchase agreement, current portion

$

0
2
6.

Total current liabilities

2,870,430
267,463
91,812
458,546
385,211
-

$

20

1,658,936
143,266
120,518
14,524
457,008
334,616
1,325,000

4,073,462

4,053,868

328,144
19,021,922
13,364,298
3,620,450

280,956
19,773,251
12,351,366
3,807,688

36,334,814

36,213,261

40,408,276

40,267,129

Pension-related deferred inflows of resources
OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources

657,356
161,803

506,684
95,884

Total deferred inflows of resources

819,159

602,568

62,386,599
20,541,506

61,032,318
17,303,790

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Undivided interest - San Dieguito Water District
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities

1
T

F
A
R

Total liabilities

D

0
.
1

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

82,928,105

$

78,336,108

(Concluded)

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Enclosure page 10

Admin & Finance Committee
November 10, 2020

Santa Fe Irrigation District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020

2019

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Filtration
Base meter fees
Other operating revenues

$

Total operating revenues

18,535,734
3,017,595
5,837,751
477,037

$

27,868,117

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water purchased
Water treatment
Administration and engineering
Transmission and distribution
Depreciation and amortization

F
A
R

Operating (loss)

0
.
1

1
T

Total operating expenses

0
2
6.

18,472,415
2,109,103
5,535,582
471,944
26,589,044

20

9,908,066
4,850,871
4,955,371
5,063,619
3,278,660

10,459,108
4,239,608
4,486,328
4,633,305
3,243,425

28,056,587

27,061,774

(188,470)

(472,730)

2,645,623
750,509
84,365
167,429
178,847
751,329
(14,711)
(163,686)

2,518,010
646,817
74,370
74,330
66,827
668,814
31,465
(53,341)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

4,399,705

4,027,292

Income before capital contributions

4,211,235

3,554,562

380,762

448,401

Changes in net position

4,591,997

4,002,963

Net position, beginning of year

78,336,108

74,333,145

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

D

Property taxes and assessments
Investment income
Rental revenue
Other revenue
Grant revenue
R.E. Badger income - undivided interest
Net gain on disposal of assets
Interest expense, net

Capital contributions

Net position, end of year

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers for water sales and service
Payments to vendors and suppliers for materials and services
Payments for employee wages, benefits and related costs
Other revenue

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

26,965,066
(16,292,529)
(6,400,592)
477,037

$

26,593,314
(17,351,955)
(7,206,355)
471,944

4,748,982

2,506,948

2,638,050
84,365
178,847
167,429

2,522,000
74,370
66,827
74,330

3,068,691

2,737,527

(2,571,323)
380,762

(2,077,230)
31,465
448,401

(178,210)

(64,767)

(1,325,000)

(1,270,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes and benefit assessments received
Rental revenue received
Grant revenue received
Other revenue received
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

F
A
R

D
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Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Cash contributions for capital-related purposes
Interest payments on R.E. Badger Water Facilities Financing
Authority installment purchase agreement
Principal payments on R.E. Badger Water Facilities
Financing Authority installment purchase agreement
Collection of amounts due from R.E. Badger Water Facilities
Financing Authority

0
2
0

2
.
6

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

1,500,974

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities

-

(2,192,797)

(2,932,131)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from reimbursement agreement receivable - San Elijo JPA
Investment income

2,212
814,796

1,822
575,767

817,008

577,589

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

6,441,884

2,889,933

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

27,145,725

24,255,792

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

33,587,609

$

27,145,725

(Continued)

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020

2019

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - water sales
Accounts receivable - other
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Pension-related deferred outflows of resources
OPEB-related deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Customer deposits
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Pension-related deferred inflows of resources
OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources

$

F
A
R

D

Net cash provided by operating activities

$

2
.
6

(472,730)

3,278,660

3,243,425

(232,859)
(165,987)
(111,036)
(9,926)
(47,261)
(222,730)
1,211,494
124,197
(28,706)
97,783
1,538
1,012,932
(187,238)
150,672
65,919

512,706
59,170
40,580
41,068
1,022,952
85,362
(1,010,120)
11,806
(130,502)
(95,662)
(190,192)
(292,088)
(321,328)
2,501

0
2
0

0
.
1
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(188,470)

$

4,748,982

$

2,506,948

$

190,816

$

32,169

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Unrealized gain on investments

(Concluded)

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Index to the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE

DESCRIPTION

PAGE

1

Reporting Entity

41

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

41

3

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

49

4

Fair Value Measurements

52

5

Capital Assets

53

6

Reimbursement Agreement Receivable – San Elijo JPA

7

Undivided Interest - San Dieguito Water District

8

Due from R.E. Badger Water Facilities Financing Authority

56

9

Installment Purchase Agreement

56

10

Compensated Absences

11

Pension Plans

12

Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

63

13

Risk Management

68

14

Commitments and Contingencies

68
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 1 – Reporting Entity
The Santa Fe Irrigation District, (“District”) was formed February 26, 1923 under the California Irrigation District Act.
The District provides water and related services to residential and commercial customers in the San Diego County
communities of Rancho Santa Fe and Fairbanks Ranch, and the City of Solana Beach.
The District and the San Dieguito Water District (SDWD) entered into an agreement for joint construction and
operation of water treatment, storage and transmission facilities. This facility is known as the R.E. Badger Filtration
Plant (“Plant”). The District and SDWD provide revenue to the Plant to fund operations (exclusive of depreciation)
based on their respective usage of treated water. Effective July 1, 1977 the District was designated as the Contracting
Authority for the Plant, and the Administering Agency. The Plant is not a separate legal entity. SDWD’s undivided
share of the investment in capital assets of the Plant has been included in the consolidated statement of net position of
the District as an Undivided Interest – San Dieguito Water District in the amounts of $19,021,922 and $19,773,251 at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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The District entered into a joint exercise of powers agreement dated September 22, 1999, with SDWD, creating the
R.E. Badger Water Facilities Financing Authority (“Authority”). The Authority was formed to provide financing in
connection with the acquisition, construction and improvement of public capital infrastructure. In order to provide
working capital necessary for certain capital improvements, the Authority is authorized by the Installment Purchase
Agreements to issue water revenue bonds. The District and SDWD are each responsible for their respective share of
the net costs of the revenue bonds. Amounts due from and to the Authority by the District have been included in these
financial statements as Due from R.E. Badger Water Facilities Financing Authority and R.E. Badger Water Facilities
Financing Authority - Installment Purchase Agreement, respectively. These financial statements do not include the net
position of the Authority. The separate financial statements of the Authority can be obtained upon request from the
District.

1
T
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D

The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of GASB Cod. Sec. 2100
“Defining the Financial Reporting Entity”. The District is the primary government unit. Component units are those
entities which are financially accountable to the primary government, either because the District appoints a voting
majority of the component unit’s board, or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a
financial burden on the District. The District has no component units.

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The basic financial statements of the Santa Fe Irrigation District have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for governmental accounting financial reporting purposes. The more
significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below:
A. Financial Statement
The financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position, and statement of cash flows) report information on all of the activities of the District. The statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation
The financial statements are reported using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as all eligibility
requirements have been met. Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period.
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, the Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for Deferred
Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources, when applicable.

0
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Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that apply to
future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time.

0
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Deferred Inflows of Resources (acquisition of net position) that apply to future periods and that, therefore, are
not recognized as revenue until that time.

F
A
R

The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering water in connection with the District’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Capital contributions are reported as a separate line item in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position.

D

C. Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Assets
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents – For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include petty
cash, demand deposits with financial institutions, deposits in money market mutual funds (SEC registered), and
deposits in external investment pools, and marketable securities that mature within 90 days of purchase. Such
marketable securities and deposits in money market funds are carried at fair value. Investment pool deposits are
carried at the District’s proportionate share of the fair value of each pool’s underlying portfolio.
State Investment Pool – The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”) that
is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio
(in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)
Risk Disclosures – Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for
the following areas:
 Interest Rate Risk
 Credit Risk
o Overall
o Custodial Credit Risk
o Concentration of Credit Risk

0
2
0

Investment Valuation – GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes disclosures about fair value measurement.
Investments, unless otherwise specified, recorded at fair value in the Statements of Net Position, are categorized
based upon the level of judgement associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Levels of inputs are
as follows:
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Level 1 - Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets at the
measurement date.

F
A
R

Level 2 - Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability
through corroboration with market data at the measurement date.

D

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect management's best estimate of what market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
E. Water Sales
Water sales revenue is recorded when water is delivered and service is rendered, including an estimated amount
for unbilled service.
F. Accounts Receivable
Management believes that all receivables are fully collectible based on historical trends; therefore allowance for doubtful
accounts were estimated as $0 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.
G. Inventories
Inventory consists of water stored in the San Dieguito Reservoir as well as materials used in the construction and
maintenance of capital assets which is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
H. Prepaid Expenses
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
expenses.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
I. Capital Assets, Depreciation and Amortization
Capital assets purchased or acquired with a cost exceeding $7,500 and an estimated useful life of at least two years
are reported at historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date received. Donated
capital assets, donated works of art and similar assets, and capital assets received in a service concession
arrangement are reported at acquisition value. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred. The ranges of estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:
Asset Type
Intangible assets
Land improvements
Transmission and distributions systems
Reservoirs
Buildings
Shop equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Autos and trucks

D

51
15-50
15-50
15-50
5-40
3-10
3-10
5-10
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J. Capital Contributions

0
2
0

Years

Capital contributions are recorded when the District receives cash contributions or accepts contributions of capital
assets in kind or when governmental construction grants are earned. Capital contributions are reported as a separate
line item in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.
K. Compensated Absences
It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation time up to a maximum of
400 hours. Sick pay may be accumulated without limitation; however, at time of voluntary termination, payment
will be made for twenty-five percent of accumulated unused sick leave up to a maximum of 600 hours; upon
termination due to retirement or death, payment will be made for fifty percent of accumulated unused sick leave
up to a maximum of 600 hours. All personal leave time may not accumulate from one year to the next, and there
is no payout for unused personal leave.
L. Long-Term Obligation
Debt premiums and discounts, if any, are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line
method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Debt issuance costs are
expensed when incurred.
M. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the plans and
additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the plans (Note 11). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
M. Pensions (Continued)
The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:
CalPERS

2020

Valuation date
Measurement date
Measurement period

2019

June 30, 2018
June 30, 2019
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018
July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

0
2
0

N. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
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For purposes of measuring the Net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the plans and additions
to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by the plans (Note 12).
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The following timeframes are used for OPEB reporting:

F
A
R

OPEB

Valuation date
Measurement date
Measurement period

O. Property Taxes

D

2020

June 30, 2018
June 30, 2019
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

2019
June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018
July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

The County of San Diego (the “County”) bills and collects property taxes on behalf of the District. The County’s tax
calendar year is July 1 to June 30. Property taxes attach as a lien on property on January 1. Taxes are levied on July 1
and are payable in two equal installments on November 1 and February 1, and become delinquent after December 10
and April 10, respectively.
P. Net Position
Net position of the District is classified into three components: (1) net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted
net position, and (3) unrestricted net position. These classifications are defined as follows:
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of notes or borrowing that are attributable to the
acquisition of the asset, construction, or improvement of those assets and the Undivided interest - San Dieguito
Water District. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt
attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets.
Restricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of net position with constrained use through
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.
Unrestricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the
definition of “net investment in capital assets,” or “restricted net position”.
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Q. Economic Dependency
The District purchases water from the Metropolitan Water District through the San Diego County Water Authority.
Interruption of this source would negatively impact the District.
R. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

0
2
0

S. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
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During fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District has implemented the following new GASB Pronouncements:

0
.
1

GASB Statement No. 95 - In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by
postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became
effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. Application of
this statement did not have a material effect on the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2020.
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T. Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation
The District is currently evaluating its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the financial
statements for the following GASB Statements:
GASB Statement No. 84 - In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities (GASB Statement
No. 84), to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The statement establishes criteria for identifying
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. It also provides for recognition of a liability to the
beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary
resources. GASB Statement No. 84 is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
GASB Statement No. 87 - In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB Statement No. 87), to
better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It also
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the
right to use an underlying asset. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending
June 30, 2022.
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
T. Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 89 - In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred
before the End of a Construction Period (GASB Statement No. 89), to (1) enhance the relevance and comparability
of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) simplify accounting for
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This statement requires that interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for
financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a
business-type activity or enterprise fund. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022.
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GASB Statement No. 90 - In August 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – an
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61 (GASB Statement No. 90), to improve the consistency and
comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve
the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. This statement requires that a
component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest account for its assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at acquisition value at the date the government acquired
a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
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GASB Statement No. 91 - In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations (GASB
Statement No. 91), to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying
the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of
the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving
required note disclosures. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending
June 30, 2023.
GASB Statement No. 92 - In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The primary
objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB Statements. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022.
GASB Statement No. 93 - In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered
Rates. Some governments have entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on
an interbank offered rate (IBOR)—most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result of
global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, prompting
governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference
rates, by either changing the reference rate or adding or changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate.
The objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that
result from the replacement of an IBOR. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022.
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
T. Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 94 - In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements
(PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with
an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the
right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset),
for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Application of this statement is effective for the
District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.
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GASB Statement No. 96 - In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an
intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other
than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures
regarding a SBITA. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.
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GASB Statement No. 97 - In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – An
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The primary
objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary
component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the
primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs
associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other
employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the
relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and
for benefits provided through those plans. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022.

D

Note 3 – Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
Cash and investments at June 30, 2020 and 2019 consist of the following:
2020
Cash and investments consist of the following:
Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
Investments
Total cash and investments

2019

$

1,500
2,049,001
31,537,108

$

1,500
1,171,869
25,972,356

$

33,587,609

$

27,145,725

A. Demand Deposits
As of June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of demand deposits was $2,049,001 and the bank balance was $2,255,969
compared to $1,171,869 and $1,997,319 at June 30, 2019, of which the total amount was collateralized or insured
with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the District’s name as discussed below under
Disclosures Relating Custodial Credit Risk.
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 3 – Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)
B. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government
Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of
the California Government Code that address interest rate risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does
not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt
agreements of the District, rather than the general provision of the California Government Code or the District’s
investment policy:

0
2
0

M aximum M aturity

M aximum Percentage
of Portfolio

M aximum Investment
in One Issuer

Quality Requirements
(S & P Rating)

U.S. Treasury Obligations
Federal Agencies

5 years
5 years

None
None

None
GNM A (only)

None
None

Federal Instrumentalities

5 years

FHLB, FNM A,
FFCB, FHLM C (only)

None

20%
20%
20%

None
None
None

AA
AA or A-1+
AA or F-1+

20%
25%
15%
20%
$65 M illion
20% or $5 M illion
20% or $5 M illion
20%

None
10%
30%
None
N/A
N/A
N/A
10%

A - short-term
or A long-term
A or A-1
A
AANone
None
None
AAAm

Authorized Investment Type

State and Local Agencies:
District's own Bonds
State Instruments
Other Local Agency (within CA only)
Repurchase Agreements

AF

R
D

Prime Commercial Paper
Bankers' Acceptances
M edium-Term Notes
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
San Diego County Treasurer's Pooled M oney Fund
California Asset M anagement Program
M oney M arket Funds
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5 years
5 years
5 years
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1 year
270 Days
180 Days
5 years
N/A
N/A
N/A
5 years

None

The District’s investment policy is more restrictive than the California Government code. The policy restricts the
maximum percentage of the portfolio in various investment types beyond the limits prescribed by the California
Government code, as well as the maximum percentage in any one issuer. The District’s policy also restricts
investment to only certain federal instrumentalities.
C. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion
of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time to provide the cash flow and liquidity
needed for operations.
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 3 – Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
C. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued)
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity at
June 30, 2020.

Investment Type

Remaining M aturity
(in M onths)
12 M onths or Less

Total

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
California Asset M anagement Program (CAM P)
San Diego County Treasurer's Pooled M oney Fund

$

Total

$

26,304,462
709,083
4,523,563

$

26,304,462
709,083
4,523,563

$

31,537,108
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31,537,108

0
.
1

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity at
June 30, 2019.

1
T

AF
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D

Investment Type

Remaining M aturity
(in M onths)
12 M onths or Less

Total

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
California Asset M anagement Program (CAM P)
San Diego County Treasurer's Pooled M oney Fund

$

20,934,931
697,425
4,340,000

$

20,934,931
697,425
4,340,000

Total

$

25,972,356

$

25,972,356

D. Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
District’s Investment Policy, or debt agreements, and the Moody’s rating for each investment type at June 30, 2020.
Rating as of Year End
Investment Type

Total

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
California Asset M anagement Program (CAM P)
San Diego County Treasurer's Pooled M oney Fund

$

26,304,462
709,083
4,523,563

Total

$

31,537,108

M inimum Legal Rating

AAA

N/A
AAA
N/A

Not Rated

$

709,083
4,523,563

$

26,304,462
-

$

5,232,646

$

26,304,462

Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
District’s Investment Policy, or debt agreements, and the Moody’s rating for each investment type at June 30, 2019.
Rating as of Year End
Investment Type

Total

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
California Asset M anagement Program (CAM P)
San Diego County Treasurer's Pooled M oney Fund

$

20,934,931
697,425
4,340,000

Total

$

25,972,356

M inimum Legal Rating
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N/A
AAA
N/A

AAA

Not Rated

$

697,425
4,340,000

$

20,934,931
-

$

5,037,425

$

20,934,931
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 3 – Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)
E. Disclosures Relating to Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the District is in accordance with limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer as stipulated by the California Government Code. The District is in compliance with the investment
policy with respect to investment type percentages for the total portfolio.
F. Disclosures Relating to Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.
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The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements
that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision
for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or
local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under
state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).
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The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging
first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. As of June 30, 2020 and
2019, $1,870,103 and $1,609,251, respectively, of the District’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of the
Federal insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts.

D

G. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
The District’s investments with Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) include a portion of the pool funds invested
in structured notes and asset-backed securities. These investments include the following:
Structured Notes - debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow characteristics
(coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have
embedded forwards or options. They are issued by corporations and by government-sponsored enterprises.
Asset-Backed Securities - entitle their purchaser to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets
such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of mortgages (such as CMO’s), small business loans
or credit card receivables.
LAIF is overseen by the Local Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance with
State statute. The fair value of our position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
As of June 30, 2020, the District had $26,304,462 invested in LAIF, which had invested 3.37% of the pool
investment funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities compared to $20,934,931 and 1.77% at
June 30, 2019.
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Note 3 – Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)
H. California Asset Management Program (CAMP)
The District is a voluntary participant in the California Asset Management Program (CAMP). CAMP is an
investment pool offered by the California Asset Management Trust (the Trust). The Trust is a joint powers authority
and public agency created by the Declaration of Trust and established under the provisions of the California Joint
Exercise of Powers Act for the purpose of exercising the common power of its Participants to invest funds. The
investments are limited to investments permitted by California Government Code. The total amount invested by
all public agencies in CAMP at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $6.6 billion and $5.4 billion, respectively. A board of
five trustees who are officials or employees of public agencies has oversight responsibility for CAMP. The value
of the pool shares in CAMP, which may be withdrawn at any time, is determined on an amortized cost basis, which
is different from the fair value of the District’s position in the pool. At June 30, 2020 and 2019 the amortized cost
approximated is the District’s cost.
I. San Diego County Investment Pool
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The District is a participant in the San Diego County Treasury Pool (County Pool) which is regulated under the
oversight of the Treasurer of the County of San Diego. The fair value of the District’s investment in the County
Pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by the County Pool for the entire portfolio. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by the Pool. Included in the County Pool’s investment portfolio are collateralized
and negotiable certificates of deposit, floating rate securities issued by federal agencies and corporations, money
market funds, repurchase agreements and commercial paper. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District had
$4,523,563 and $4,340,000 invested in the San Diego County Investment Pool, respectively.
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Note 4 – Fair Value Measurements
The District has no investments categorized in Level 1, 2 or 3 at June 30, 2019. Investments in LAIF, CAMP and the
San Diego County Pool, totaling $31,537,108 and $25,972,356, respectively, at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are all
investments measured at cost and not subject to the fair value hierarchy.
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Note 5 – Capital Assets
Summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2019

Additions

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
$
1,533,105
Construction in progress
1,457,769
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated
2,990,874
Capital assets, being
depreciated/amortized:
Land improvements
163,215
49,636,251
Transmission and distribution system
Treatment Facilities
72,572,181
Reservoirs
1,636,307
Buildings
3,153,876
Shop equipment
1,224,784
Office furniture and equipment
2,058,428
Autos and trucks
1,248,910
Total capital assets,
being depreciated/amortized
131,693,952
Accumulated
depreciation/amortization:
Land improvements
(103,213)
(18,279,537)
Transmission and distribution system
Treatment Facilities
(27,880,970)
Reservoirs
(1,572,627)
Buildings
(1,748,880)
Shop equipment
(763,652)
Office furniture and equipment
(1,517,580)
Autos and trucks
(1,095,000)

$

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net
Intangible assets, being amortized
Less accumulated amortization
Total intangible assets, net
Total capital assets, being
depreciated/amortized, net

-

$

-

$

1,533,105
3,316,513

(18,545)
18,545

163,215
49,636,251
72,592,370
1,646,540
3,213,456
1,224,784
2,151,402
1,760,593

(17,921)

-

132,388,611

(1,079)
(1,227,128)
(1,566,790)
(9,599)
(111,722)
(18,718)
(207,974)
(120,568)

3,209
-

-

(104,292)
(19,506,665)
(29,447,760)
(1,582,226)
(1,860,602)
(782,370)
(1,722,345)
(1,215,568)

(52,961,459)

(3,263,578)

3,209

-

(56,221,828)

78,732,493

(2,550,998)

(14,712)

-

76,166,783

38,734
10,233
59,580
110,895
493,138

-

Balance
June 30, 2019

4,849,618

0
2
6.
(17,921)
-

0
.
1
712,580

20

980,052
(572,850)

(15,082)

-

-

980,052
(587,932)

407,202

(15,082)

-

-

392,120

79,139,695
$

Transfers/
Reclassifications

-

1
T
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$

1,858,744
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Total capital assets, net

1,858,744

Deletions

82,130,569

(2,566,080)
$

(707,336)
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$
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Note 5 – Capital Assets (Continued)
Summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2018

Additions

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
$
1,533,105
Construction in progress
1,267,199
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated
2,800,304
Capital assets, being
depreciated/amortized:
Land improvements
163,215
Transmission and distribution system
48,687,635
Treatment Facilities
72,440,719
Reservoirs
1,620,731
Buildings
3,036,599
Shop equipment
1,032,080
Office furniture and equipment
1,693,341
Autos and trucks
1,347,760
Total capital assets,
being depreciated/amortized
130,022,080
Accumulated
depreciation/amortization:
Land improvements
(101,162)
Transmission and distribution system
(17,082,050)
Treatment Facilities
(26,260,891)
Reservoirs
(1,568,591)
Buildings
(1,638,589)
Shop equipment
(800,448)
Office furniture and equipment
(1,454,461)
Autos and trucks
(1,039,963)

1,727,659

$

1,727,659

81,939
15,576
117,277
192,704
159,455
-

Transfers/
Reclassifications

(219,129)

$

(219,129)

0
2
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(29,714)
(84,475)
(98,850)

0
.
1

1
T

F
A
R

D

$

Deletions

566,951

(1,317,960)
(1,317,960)

20

(213,039)

Balance
June 30, 2019
$

1,533,105
1,457,769
2,990,874

948,616
79,237
290,107
-

163,215
49,636,251
72,572,181
1,636,307
3,153,876
1,224,784
2,058,428
1,248,910

1,317,960

131,693,952

(2,051)
(1,197,487)
(1,649,793)
(4,036)
(110,291)
(62,054)
(63,119)
(139,512)

29,714
98,850
84,475

-

(103,213)
(18,279,537)
(27,880,970)
(1,572,627)
(1,748,880)
(763,652)
(1,517,580)
(1,095,000)

(49,946,155)

(3,228,343)

213,039

-

(52,961,459)

80,075,925

(2,661,392)

-

980,052
(557,768)

(15,082)

-

-

980,052
(572,850)

Total intangible assets, net

422,284

(15,082)

-

-

407,202

Total capital assets, being
depreciated/amortized, net

80,498,209

(2,676,474)

-

$ 163,374,438

$ (3,610,207)

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net
Intangible assets, being amortized
Less accumulated amortization

Total capital assets, net

$

(219,129)

1,317,960

$

78,732,493

1,317,960

79,139,695

1,317,960

$ 160,863,062

Depreciation expense for depreciable capital assets was $3,263,578 and $3,228,343 for the years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively. Amortization expense for amortizable capital assets was $15,082 and $15,082 for the years
ending 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 6 – Reimbursement Agreement Receivable – San Elijo JPA
The District constructed a recycled water distribution pipeline extension of 3,400 linear feet to the San Elijo JPA
(SEJPA) recycled water distribution system in order to extend SEJPA’s existing recycled water distribution system
and enable the District to serve new recycled water customers. SEJPA agreed to reimburse the District for the cost
of design and construction of the extension in the amount of $526,149 and the District agreed to convey ownership
of the extension to SEJPA. Under the terms of the agreement, the reimbursement amount shall be increased each July
1 s t by adding interest at the rate equivalent to the average LAIF rate for the past four quarters, but not less than
1% nor greater than 2.5% calculated on the unpaid monthly balance.
SEJPA shall reimburse the District at a monthly rate of $450 per acre foot of recycled water delivered through the
extension including water delivered to purveyors other than the District. In addition, SEJPA made an initial down
payment of $50,000. SEJPA will further make a lump sum payment of all remaining principal and interest due
after completion of the 20th year of this agreement if the average annual delivery volume of the extension from year
13 through year 15 exceeds 50 acre feet annually to all purveyors.
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Reimbursement Agreement receivable activity consists of the following for the year ended June 30, 2020:
Balance
July 1, 2019

1
T
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Reimbursement Agreement:
Receivable - San Elijo JPA

D

$

429,863

Additions

$

Payments

-

$

(10,914)

Interest
$

8,702

Balance
June 30, 2020
$

427,651

Reimbursement Agreement receivable activity consists of the following for the year ended June 30, 2019:

Reimbursement Agreement:
Receivable - San Elijo JPA

Balance
July 1, 2018

$

431,685

Additions
$

Payments
-

$

(10,670)

Interest
$

8,848

Balance
June 30, 2019
$

429,863

Note 7 – Undivided Interest - San Dieguito Water District
Pursuant to an agreement for joint construction and operation of water treatment, storage, and transmission facilities
between the District and the San Dieguito Water District (SDWD), the District is the Contracting Authority and the
Administering Agency for the R.E. Badger Water Treatment Facilities (Plant). The Plant is not a separate legal
entity. SDWD’s interest in the Plant is reflected in the statement of net position of the District as an Undivided
Interest in the amount of $19,021,922 and $19,773,251 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. SDWD is billed
for its share of the operating expenses (exclusive of depreciation). In addition, SDWD is billed for its share of any
capital assets. As such, SDWD’s undivided interest is adjusted each year by its share of the capital assets and its
share of the depreciation expense. The financial statements of the Plant are presented as supplementary information
to these financial statements.
Based on various agreements, the operating costs of the Plant are allocated based on annual usage of treated water,
except for the operating costs of the San Dieguito Reservoir & Dam, Flume, 30” line, Cielo Pump station and Pipeline
which is allocated based on ownership and the Hydroelectric Generator which is based on CWA raw water purchases.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 7 – Undivided Interest - San Dieguito Water District (Continued)
Capital expenditures are based on ownership percentages of the various components as follows:

Filtration Plant
Filtered Water Reservoir (Clearwell)
Filtered Water Treatment M ain (Old 54" line)
Filtered Water Treatment M ain (New 54" line)
CWA Filtered Water Connection
Wash Water Reclamation System (Backwash recovery)
Hydroelectric Facility
San Dieguito Reservoir, Dam, Flume and 30" Line
Rancho Cielo Pump Station and Pipeline
San Dieguito Pump Station

Santa Fe Irrigation
District

San Dieguito Water
District

55.00%
69.00%
61.00%
57.33%
55.00%
57.33%
53.50%
57.33%
57.33%
55.00%

45.00%
31.00%
39.00%
42.67%
45.00%
42.67%
46.50%
42.67%
42.67%
45.00%
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Note 8 – Due from R.E. Badger Water Facilities Financing Authority
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The District entered into a joint exercise of powers agreement dated September 22, 1999, with SDWD creating the
R.E. Badger Water Facilities Financing Authority (the “Authority”). The Authority was formed to provide financing
in connection with the acquisition, construction and improvement of public capital improvements. In order to provide
the working capital necessary for certain capital improvements, the Authority is authorized by the Installment Purchase
Agreements to issue water revenue bonds. The District and SDWD are each responsible for their respective share of the
net costs of the respective revenue bonds.

D

The District had advanced no funds to the Authority at June 30, 2020.
The District had advanced the following amounts to the Authority at June 30, 2019:
District Reserve Fund
Bond discount, issue premiums and deferred
amounts on refunding

$

1,401,962

$

1,500,974

99,012

Note 9 – Installment Purchase Agreement
Summary of changes in the installment purchase agreement for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2019
Installment purchase agreement

$

1,325,000

Debt
Issuance
$

Debt
Retirement
-

$ (1,325,000)

Balance
June 30, 2020
$

-

Due within
One Year
$

Due in M ore
Than One Year
-

$

-

Summary of changes in the installment purchase agreement for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2018
Installment purchase agreement

$

2,595,000

Debt
Issuance
$

Debt
Retirement
-

$ (1,270,000)
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Balance
June 30, 2019
$

1,325,000

Due within
One Year
$

1,325,000

Due in M ore
Than One Year
$
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 9 – Installment Purchase Agreement (Continued)
On November 1, 2007 The District entered into an Installment Purchase Agreement with the R.E. Badger Water
Facilities Financing Authority (Authority) in the amount of $20,685,000 to repay certain revenue bonds issued by the
Authority to fund construction of water treatment, storage and transmission facilities (R.E. Badger Water Treatment
Facilities). Interest rates range from 3.449% to 4.500%, and principal amounts range from $1,045,000 to $1,325,000
due annually to October 2019. The District has pledged revenues to repay the debt. As of June 2020, the District has
paid the debt in full.

Note 10 – Compensated Absences

0
2
0

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave is recorded as an expense and liability as benefits accrue to employees.
Summary of changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Compensated absences

$

615,572

Additions
$

1
T

432,399

F
A
R

$

2
.
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Deletions

(334,616)

Ending
Balance

$

713,355

Due within
One Year

$

385,211

Due in More
Than One Year
$

328,144

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave is recorded as an expense and liability as benefits accrue to employees.
Summary of changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:
Beginning
Balance

Compensated absences

$

D

497,860

Additions

$

515,326

Ending
Balance

Deletions
$

(397,614)

$

615,572

Due within
One Year
$

334,616

Due in M ore
Than One Year
$

280,956

Note 11 – Pension Plans
A. General Information about the Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in one of the District’s following
plans: 2.7% at 55 (Miscellaneous Plan), 2.0% at 60 (Tier 2 Miscellaneous Plan), or 2% at 62 (PEPRA
Miscellaneous Plan). All plans are cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are
established by State statute and District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full
description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can
be found on the CalPERS website.
Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service,
equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire· at age
50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of
service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the
Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by
the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued)
A. General Information about the Pension Plans (Continued)
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:

Hire Date

Miscellaneous Plan

Tier 2 Misc Plan

PEPRA Misc Plan

Prior to
January 1, 2013

On or After
January 1, 2013

On or After
January 1, 2013

Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments

2.7% @ 55

2% @ 60

2% @ 62

5 years service
M onthly for life

5 years service
M onthly for life

5 years service
M onthly for life

Retirement age
M onthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates
Final Annual Compensation

0
2
6.

52 - 67
1.092% to 2.418%
7.000%

52 - 67
1.0% to 2.5%
6.250%

13.182%
1 year

8.081%
1 year

6.985%
1 year

0
.
1

1
T

20

50 - 55
2.0% to 2.7%
8.00%

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, measurement dates, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for
the plan:

F
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D

M easeument Date

2019

2018

Active employees
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to, but not
yet receiving benefits
Total

46

47

55

53

17

15

118

115

Contributions
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution
rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1
following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial
basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the
contribution rate of employees.
For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan
were as follows:
2020
Contributions - employer

$
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1,316,260

$
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Admin & Finance Committee
November 10, 2020

Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued)
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019 respectively, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares
of the net pension liability as follows:
2020
Proportionate share of net pension liability

$

2019

13,364,298

$

12,351,366

The District’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability for
each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018
rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative
to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.
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The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of the measurement date ended
June 30, 2018 and 2019 was as follows:

1
T

AF

2020

Proportion - June 30, 2018
Proportion - June 30, 2019
Change - Increase/(Decrease)

R
D

0.327734%
0.333732%
0.005998%
2019

Proportion - June 30, 2017
Proportion - June 30, 2018
Change - Increase/(Decrease)

0.318148%
0.327734%
0.009586%

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $2,432,604. At June 30, 2020, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:
2020
Deferred outflows
of Resources
Contribution made after the measurement date
Difference between expected and actual
experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Employer contributions in excess/(under)
proportionate share of contributions
Adjustments due to difference in proportions
Total

$

$
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Deferred inflows
of Resources

1,316,260

$

-

856,290
411,364

-

-

233,649

31,432
2,615,346

423,707
657,356

$
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued)
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
(Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $1,642,825. At June 30, 2019, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:
2019
Deferred outflows
of Resources
Contribution made after the measurement date
Difference between expected and actual
experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Employer contributions in excess/(under)
proportionate share of contributions
Adjustments due to difference in proportions

$

0
2
0

1,131,392

$

2
.
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Total

$

Deferred inflows
of Resources
-

312,635
1,062,996

-

61,062

-

-

395,210
111,474

2,568,085

$

506,684

For the District’s plans $1,316,260 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from District’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the Net
Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

D

M easurement Period
Ended June 30

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of
Resources

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

753,341
(243,583)
84,760
47,212
-

Total

$

641,730

For the District’s plans $1,131,392 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from District’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the Net
Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
M easurement Period
Ended June 30

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of
Resources

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

$

1,008,578
504,919
(472,396)
(111,092)
-

Total

$

930,009
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued)
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
(Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2019 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was determined
by rolling forward the June 30, 2018 total pension liability determined in the June 30, 2018 actuarial accounting
valuation. The June 30, 2019 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

0
2
0

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirement of GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial Cost M ethod
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return
M ortality Rate Table

D

0
.
1

1
T

F
A
R

Post Retirement Benefit Increase

2
.
6

7.15%
2.75%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.15%
Derived using CalPERS’ M embership Data for all Funds. The mortality table used was
developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 years of mortality
improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.
Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were
based on the results of a January 2015 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of
the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website.
Discount Rate
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account, both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all
future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term
returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric
rates of return are net of administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 11 – Pension Plans (Continued)
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
(Continued)
Discount Rate (Continued)
New Strategic
Allocation

Asset Class
Global equity
Global fixed income
Inflation sensitive assets
Private equity
Real assets
Liquidity

1

An expected inflation of 2.00% was used for this period.

2

An expected inflation of 2.92% was used for this period.

0
2
0
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1
T

11 + 2
5.98%
2.62%
1.81%
7.23%
4.93%
-0.92%

1 - 10
4.80%
1.00%
0.77%
6.30%
3.75%
0.00%

50.00%
28.00%
0.00%
8.00%
13.00%
1.00%

1

Real Return Years

Real Return Years

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the plan. To determine whether the
municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans
that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate.
Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15% discount rate is
adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate
of 7.15% is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are
presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained from the CalPERS
website under the GASB 68 Section.

F
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D

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using
the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1percentage point higher than the current rate:
2020
1% Decrease
Net Pension Liability

2019

$

6.15%
19,861,299

$

6.15%
18,581,108

Current Discount Rate
Net Pension Liability

$

7.15%
13,364,298

$

7.15%
12,351,366

1% Increase
Net Pension Liability

$

8.15%
8,001,485

$

8.15%
7,208,816

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial reports.
C. Payable to the Pension Plan
The District had no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the years ending
June 30, 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 12 – Postemployment Healthcare Benefits
A. General Information about OPEB
Plan Description
The District provides post-employment health care benefits established by District resolution to all qualifying
employees. The plan is part of the Public Agency portion of the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust Fund
(CERBT), an agent multiple-employer plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public employers within
the State of California. Eligible active employees are offered a choice of medical (including prescription drug
coverage) plans through the CalPERS Health Program under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care
Act (PEMHCA), an agent multiple-employer plan. The District offers the same medical plans to eligible retirees,
except once a retiree is eligible for Medicare, the retiree must join a Medicare HMO or Supplement Plan with
Medicare being the primary payer and the District’s Plan being the secondary payer.
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Eligibility for retiree health benefits requires retirement from the District and PERS on or after age 50 with at least
5 years of District eligible service. Directors are not eligible to continue health benefits at retirement. For
employees hired prior to September 20, 2007, the District’s contribution is equal to the benefit paid for active
employees and their dependents at the time of their retirement. For employees hired on or after September 20, 2007,
the District’s contribution is the CalPERS statutory minimum employer contribution. Surviving spouses and/or
dependents of the eligible retiree are also eligible for the District’s contributions. Retirees are not eligible for
dental or vision benefits at retirement other than COBRA continuation.
Contribution

F
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R
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The District’s plan and its contribution requirements are established by District policy and may be amended by the
Board of Directors. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District’s cash contributions were $582,553 and $574,832, respectively, in
payments to the trust.
Employees Covered
As of the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees were covered by the
benefit terms:
Active employees
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits
Total

48
42
90

B. Net OPEB Liability
The District’s net OPEB liability at June 30, 2020, was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The District’s
net OPEB liability at June 30, 2019, was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 12 – Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)
B. Net OPEB Liability (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability, measured as of June 30, 2019, was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
Actuarial Assumptions
Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost M ethod
Amortization M ethod
Asset Valuation M ethod
Inflation
Payroll Growth
Discount Rate

July 1, 2019
Early Age Normal, Level Percentage of Pay
Level Percent
M arket Value
2.75%
2.75% Plus M erit
7.00%

0
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on a standard set of assumptions the
actuary has used for similar valuations, modified as appropriate for the District.
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The total OPEB liability, measured as of June 30, 2018, was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
Actuarial Assumptions
Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost M ethod
Amortization M ethod
Asset Valuation M ethod
Inflation
Payroll Growth
Discount Rate

D

July 1, 2017
Early Age Normal, Level Percentage of Pay
Level Percent
M arket Value
2.75%
3% Plus M erit
7.00%

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on a standard set of assumptions the
actuary has used for similar valuations, modified as appropriate for the District.
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the longterm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
Target
Allocation

Investment Class
Global Equity
Global Debt Securities
Inflation Assets
Commodities
REITs
Total

59.00%
25.00%
5.00%
3.00%
8.00%
100.00%

Long-term expected rate of return
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Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
5.50%
2.35%
1.50%
1.75%
3.65%
7.00%
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 12 – Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)
B. Net OPEB Liability (Continued)
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.00 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the District plan's fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total OPEB liability.
C. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

0
2
0

2
.
6

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the
current rate, for the measurement periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

0
.
1

1
T

2020

F
A
R

1% Decrease
Net OPEB Liability

D

Current Discount Rate
Net OPEB Liability
1% Increase
Net OPEB Liability

2019

$

6.00%
4,655,115

$

6.00%
4,830,453

$

7.00%
3,620,450

$

7.00%
3,807,688

$

8.00%
2,758,559

$

8.00%
2,959,726

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using health care cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher
than the current rates, for the measurement periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:
1% Decrease

$

2020
2,712,423

$

2019
2,839,256

Current Trend Rate

$

3,620,450

$

3,807,688

1% Increase

$

4,717,950

$

4,987,271
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 12 – Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)
D. Change in Net OPEB Liability
Summary of changes in net OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:
Total
OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2018 (M easurement Date)

$

8,149,701

Plan
Fiduciary
Net Position
$

Changes Recognized for the Measurement Periood:

4,342,013

Service Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Contribution from the employer
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments

AF

Balance at June 30, 2019 (M easurement Date)

R
D

2
.
6

317,315

$

8,467,016

$

0
2
0

144,347
562,756
(138,439)
258,011
(509,360)

0
.
1

1
T

Net changes during July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Net
OPEB
Liability

$

3,807,688

729,112
287,004
(2,203)
(509,360)

144,347
562,756
(138,439)
258,011
(729,112)
(287,004)
2,203
-

504,553

(187,238)

4,846,566

$

3,620,450

Summary of changes in net OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows:
Total
OPEB
Liability

Balance at June 30, 2017 (M easurement Date)

$

7,931,833

Plan
Fiduciary
Net Position
$

3,832,057

Net
OPEB
Liability
$

4,099,776

Changes Recognized for the Measurement Periood:
Service Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Contribution from the employer
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments

140,143
548,559
(470,834)

Net changes during July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Balance at June 30, 2018 (M easurement Date)

680,316
307,635
(7,161)
(470,834)

217,868
$
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8,149,701

140,143
548,559
(680,316)
(307,635)
7,161
-

509,956
$

4,342,013

(292,088)
$

3,807,688
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 12 – Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)
E. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, OPEB expense in the amount of $392,783 and $390,731, respectively
is included in the accompanying statement of activities.
At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:
2020
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Contributions made after measurement date
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings of OPEB Plan investments

$

F
A
R

0
2
0

574,832
-

46,437
161,803

574,832

2
.
6

582,553
215,009

0
.
1

1
T
$

2019
Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

797,562

$

$

115,366
-

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

$

$

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

$

95,884
95,884

For the District’s OPEB plan $582,553 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting
from District’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

D

Year Ending
June 30

Amount

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

$

(4,968)
(4,970)
18,377
24,840
19,927
-

Total

$

53,206

For the District’s OPEB plan $797,562 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting
from District’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year Ending
June 30

Amount

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

(29,807)
(29,807)
(29,809)
(6,461)
-

Total

$

(95,884)
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Note 13 – Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the Association of California
Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (“Insurance Authority”). The Insurance Authority is a riskpooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions of California Government Code Sections 6500 et. seq.
The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses
and to purchase excess insurance coverage.
At June 30, 2020, the District participated in the self-insurance programs of the Insurance Authority as follows:

0
2
0

Property Program - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per occurrence and
has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $500,000,000 (total insurable value $60,989,124). The District has
a $25,000 deductible for buildings, personal property and fixed equipment, a $5,000 deductible on mobile
equipment, a $500 deductible for licensed vehicles, and a $1,000 deductible for Crime.

0
.
1

2
.
6

General Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $5,000,000 per occurrence and has
purchased excess insurance coverage up to $60,000,000, subject to various aggregate limits.

F
A
R

1
T

Auto Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $5,000,000 per occurrence and has
purchased excess insurance coverage up to $60,000,000, subject to various aggregate limits.

D

Public Officials’ Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $5,000,000 per occurrence
and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $60,000,000, subject to various aggregate limits.
Crime - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000. The District has a $1,000 deductible.
Workers’ Compensation - Insured for statutory limits. Workers’ compensation is self-insured up to $2,000,000
and excess insurance coverage has been purchased.
The District pays annual premiums for this coverage. They are subject to retrospective adjustments based on claims
experience. The nature and amounts of these adjustments cannot be estimated and are charged to expense as
invoiced. There were no instances in the past three years where a settlement exceeded the District’s coverage.

Note 14 – Commitments and Contingencies
A. Contracts
The District has entered into various contracts for the purchase of material, and construction of facilities. The
amounts contracted for are based on the contractor’s estimated cost of construction. The total outstanding
commitments on these contracts were $24,373 and $24,373 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
B. Litigation
Management is of the opinion that there are no legal litigations that would have a material effect on the basic
financial statements.
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Note 14 – Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
C. Grant Awards
Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to requests
for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Management of
the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

D

F
A
R

2
.
6

0
.
1

1
T
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Years*
M easurement period, year ended

6/30/2019

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/30/2016

6/30/2015

6/30/2014 1

Plan's proportion of the net pension liability

0.3337320%

0.3277343%

0.3181480%

0.3141870%

0.2931300%

0.2630800%

Plan's proportionate share of the net pension liability

$ 13,364,298

$ 12,351,366

$ 12,541,558

$ 10,914,488

$ 8,566,324

$ 6,501,904

Plan's covered-employee payroll

$ 4,269,661

$ 4,399,153

$ 4,173,185

$ 4,103,213

$ 3,719,325

$ 3,855,463

Plan's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll
Plan's fiduciary net position

313.01%
$ 34,939,432

280.77%
$ 33,196,300

300.53%
$ 31,394,784

266.00%

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

$ 29,195,811

total pension liability

72.33%

72.88%

2
.
6

Plan's proportionate share of aggregate
employer contributions
1

$ 1,131,392

Information only presented from the implementation year

$

0
.
1

1
T

F
A
R

D

$ 1,013,764
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71.46%

917,461

230.32%
$ 30,358,307

72.79%

$

832,671

168.64%
$ 31,049,358

77.99%

$

628,467

82.69%

$

650,656
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Schedule of Contributions – CalPERS Pension Plan
Last Ten Years*
Fiscal Year:

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

$ 1,316,260

$ 1,131,392

$ 1,013,764

2015-16

2014-15

Contractually determined
contribution (actuarially determined)

$

917,461

$

832,671

$

628,467

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contributions

(1,316,260)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered payroll

$ 4,840,771

(1,131,392)

-

$

-

$ 4,269,661

(1,013,764)
$

-

$ 4,399,153

(917,461)
$

-

(832,671)
$

$ 4,173,185

-

$ 4,103,213

(628,467)
$

-

$ 3,719,325

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

27.19%

26.50%

23.04%

Notes to S chedule

21.98%

0
2
0

7.53%

7.46%

2
.
6

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

0
.
1

The actuarial methods and assumption used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2020 were derived from the June
30, 2018 funding valuation report.

F
A
R

For details, see June 30, 2018 Funding Valuation Report

Amortization method/period

Actuarial Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 2016 Funding Valuation Report.

Asset valuation method
Inflation
Salary increases
Payroll growth

1
T

Entry Age Normal

Actuarial cost method

D

2.63%

Varies by entry age and service
2.875%

Investment rate of return

7.00% net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses.

Retirement age

The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from

M ortality

The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from
1997 to 2011. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected
mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries.

1

Information only presented from the implementation year
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Years*

2018-2019

For the Measurement Period:
Total OPEB Liability:
Service Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments including refunds of member contributions

$

144,347
562,756
(138,439)
258,011
(509,360)

$

End of Year
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Employer contribution
Employee contributions
Net investment income
Benefit payments including refunds of member contributions
Administrative expenses
Other

Net OPEB Liability

1
T

R
D

AF

Net changes in Fiduciary Net Position
End of Year

2
.
6

130,975
534,737
(484,002)
181,710

7,931,833

7,750,123

$

8,149,701

$

7,931,833

$

680,316
307,635
(470,834)
(2,092)
(5,069)

$

725,486
351,945
(484,002)
(1,778)
-

504,553

509,956

591,651

4,342,013

3,832,057

3,240,406

4,846,566

$

4,342,013

$

3,832,057

$

3,620,450

$

3,807,688

$

4,099,776

57.24%
$

Covered Payroll

729,112
287,004
(509,360)
(2,203)
-

$

$

Fiduciary Net Position as a % of Total OPEB Liability

4,611,430
78.51%

Net OPEB Liability as a % of Payroll

1

0
2
0

8,467,016

0
.
1
$

140,143
548,559
(470,834)

2016-2017

217,868

8,149,701

Beginning of Year

Beginning of Year

$

317,315

Net changes in Total OPEB Liability

1

2017-2018

53.28%
$

4,173,185
91.24%

48.31%
$

4,173,185
98.24%

Information only presented from the implementation year
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Schedule of Contributions – Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan
Last Ten Years*

2018-2019

For the Measurement Period:
Actuarially Determined Contributions

$

574,832

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution

1

2017-2018
$

(729,112)

660,194

2016-2017
$

(680,316)

646,183
(725,486)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

(154,280)

$

(20,122)

$

(79,303)

Covered-employee payroll

$

4,287,948

$

4,173,185

$

4,173,185

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

1

0
.
1

F
A
R

1
T
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Combining Schedule of Net Position
June 30, 2020

District

Plant

Eliminations

Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments

$

Accounts receivable - water sales, net

33,106,247

$

481,362

$

-

$

33,587,609

4,022,728

-

-

4,022,728

285,095

-

(285,095)

-

-

769,293

(769,293)

-

Accounts receivable - other

70,055

493,113

-

563,168

Property taxes and assessments collectible

25,968

-

25,968

Accounts receivable - R.E.Badger Filtration Plant
Accounts receivable - District

Interest receivable

89,770

Inventories

866

-

90,636

142,659

-

546,744

33,959

-

69,607

1,921,252

(1,054,388)

38,906,460

3,199,797

-

4,849,618

33,050,664

43,508,239

-

76,558,903

34,700,485

46,708,036

-

81,408,521

404,085

Prepaid expenses and deposits

2
.
6

35,648

0
.
1

Total current assets

38,039,596

1
T

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, depreciable/amortizable, net

F
A
R

Capital assets, net

Reimbursement agreement receivable - San Elijo JPA

D

Deposit in the R.E.Badger Water Treatment Facilities

Investment in the R.E.Badger Water Treatment Facilities
Total noncurrent assets

0
2
0
-

Total assets

1,649,821

427,651

-

-

427,651

291,000

-

(291,000)

-

22,978,062

-

(22,978,062)

-

58,397,198

46,708,036

(23,269,062)

81,836,172

96,436,794

48,629,288

(24,323,450)

120,742,632

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related deferred outflows of resources
OPEB-related deferred outflows of resources
Total deferred outflows of resources

1,746,701

868,645

-

2,615,346

586,021

211,541

-

797,562

2,332,722

1,080,186

-

3,412,908
(Continued)
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Combining Schedule of Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2019

District

Reclassifications/
Eliminations

Plant

Total

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

$

2,145,368

Accounts payable - District

$

-

725,062

$

-

285,095

(285,095)

$

2,870,430
-

Accounts payable - R.E.Badger Filtration Plant

769,293

-

(769,293)

-

Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue

162,947
-

104,516
91,812

-

267,463
91,812

Deposits

159,596

298,950

-

458,546

-

291,000

(291,000)

-

248,696

136,515

-

385,211

1,932,950

(1,345,388)

4,073,462

Deposits - District
Compensated absences, current portion
Total current liabilities

0
.
1

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences

1
T

Undivided interest - San Dieguito Water District
Net pension liability

0
2
0

2
.
6

3,485,900

211,853

-

116,291

-

328,144

-

19,021,922

19,021,922

8,925,562

4,438,736

-

13,364,298

2,660,183

960,267

-

3,620,450

11,797,598

5,515,294

19,021,922

36,334,814

15,283,498

7,448,244

17,676,534

40,408,276

Pension-related deferred inflows of resources

439,026

218,330

-

657,356

OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources

118,887

42,916

-

161,803

557,913

261,246

-

819,159

Net investment in capital assets

34,700,485

46,708,036

(19,021,922)

62,386,599

Unrestricted (deficit)

48,227,620

(4,708,052)

(22,978,062)

20,541,506

AF

Net OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

R
D

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION

Total net position

$

82,928,105

$

41,999,984

$

(41,999,984)

$

82,928,105
(Concluded)
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

District

Plant

Eliminations

Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales

$

18,502,745

Filtration
Base meter fees
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues

$

133,752

3,017,595

-

-

5,837,751

385,728

91,309

-

477,037

24,726,224

6,627,741

(3,485,848)

27,868,117

1,659,260

1,619,400

-

3,278,660

23,125,239

8,764,068

(3,832,720)

28,056,587

1,600,985

(2,136,327)

3,731,957
3,905,655

Transmission and distribution

3,953,290

A
R
D

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property taxes and assessments
Investment income
Rental revenue

133,752

6
0
.

11

FT

20

0
2
.

Water treatment

Operating income (loss)

18,535,734

5,837,751

Administration and engineering

Total operating expenses

$

(3,385,085)

9,875,077

Depreciation and amortization

(100,763)

6,402,680

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water purchased

$

-

4,850,871

(100,763)

9,908,066

(3,731,957)

4,850,871

-

4,955,371

1,110,329

-

5,063,619

1,049,716

346,872

(188,470)

2,645,623

-

-

2,645,623

744,901

5,608

-

750,509

39,000

45,365

-

84,365

Other revenue

167,429

-

-

167,429

Grant revenue

33,247

145,600

-

178,847

Investment in R.E. Badger income (loss)
R.E. Badger income (loss) - undivided interest
Net gain on disposal of assets
Interest expense, net

(576,630)

-

576,630

-

-

-

751,329

751,329

-

(14,711)

-

(14,711)

(163,686)

-

-

(163,686)

181,862

1,327,959

4,399,705

1,674,831

4,211,235

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

2,889,884

Income (Loss) before capital contributions

4,490,869

Capital contributions

(1,954,465)

101,128

626,506

(346,872)

380,762

Changes in net position

4,591,997

(1,327,959)

1,327,959

4,591,997

Net Position, Beginning of year

78,336,108

43,327,943

(43,327,943)

78,336,108

Net Position, End of year

$

82,928,105
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Supplementary Schedule of Net Position
R.E. Badger Filtration Plant
June 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts Receivable:
Santa Fe Irrigation District receivable
San Dieguito Water District receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Other receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expense

$

769,293
481,280
866
11,833
142,659
33,959

0
2
0

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation

Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow - related to pensions
Deferred Outflow - related to OPEB

LIABILITIES

R
D

AF

1
T

1,921,252

2
.
6

0
.
1

Total Capital assets, net

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

481,362

3,199,797
43,508,239
46,708,036
48,629,288
868,645
211,541
1,080,186

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - District
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences, current portion

725,062
285,095
104,516
91,812
136,515

Total Current Liabilities

1,343,000

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Deposits:
San Dieguito Water District deposits
Santa Fe Irrigation District deposits
Other

116,291
4,438,736
960,267
291,000
291,000
7,950

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

6,105,244

Total Liabilities

7,448,244

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow - related to pensions
Deferred Inflow - related to OPEB

218,330
42,916

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

261,246

NET POSITION
Net position - San Dieguito Water District
Net position - Santa Fe Irrigation District

19,021,922
22,978,062

Total Net Position

$
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Supplementary Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
R.E. Badger Filtration Plant
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Filtration
Water sales
Miscellaneous

$

Total Operating Revenues

6,402,680
133,752
91,309
6,627,741

OPERATING EXPENSES
Pumps
Source of supply - Hodges
Treatment:
Chemicals
Salaries
Operations and maintenance
Employee retirement and other benefits
Administration and General:
Salaries
Employee retirement and other benefits
Administrative
Insurance
Professional fees
Depreciation

Operating (loss)

1
T

F
A
R

D

Total operating expenses

0
.
1

0
2
6.

1,110,329
133,752

20

1,077,295
1,622,158
1,112,474
1,038,944
48,540
218,329
629,587
72,360
80,900
1,619,400
8,764,068
(2,136,327)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
Rental revenue
Grant revenue
Net gain (loss) on disposal of assets

5,608
45,365
145,600
(14,711)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

181,862

Loss before capital contributions

(1,954,465)

Capital Contributions

626,506

Changes in net position

(1,327,959)

Net Position, Beginning of year

43,327,943

Net Position, End of year

$
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Santa Fe Irrigation District
Supplementary Reconciliation of Billings
R.E. Badger Filtration Plant
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Operations

July

Capital

SFID

SDWD

Total

SFID
$

$ 574,923

$ 367,902

$ 207,021

$ 574,923

202,584

567,578

5,784

4,683

10,467

370,778

207,267

578,045

September

264,523

154,310

418,833

3,543

2,794

6,337

268,066

157,104

425,170

October

447,724

264,301

712,025

1,163

929

2,092

448,887

265,230

714,117

November

340,956

241,803

582,759

7,195

5,729

12,924

348,151

247,532

595,683

December

163,540

161,512

325,052

19,172

14,607

33,779

182,712

176,119

358,831

January

316,789

284,550

601,339

55,830

43,877

99,707

372,619

328,427

701,046

February

196,308

140,427

336,735

76,786

62,825

139,611

273,094

203,252

476,346

March

212,044

174,463

386,507

108,583

88,841

197,424

320,627

263,304

583,931

April

274,941

219,633

494,574

6,585

4,971

281,526

224,604

506,130

May

214,519

132,468

346,987

24,313

19,102

238,832

151,570

390,402

June

253,679

148,434

402,113

5,086

152,519

411,284

3,417,919

2,331,506

5,749,425

314,040

566,483

3,731,959

2,583,949

6,315,908

471,306

181,950

653,256

6
0
.

258,765

27,192

60,024

504,138

209,142

713,280

$ 3,889,225

$ 2,513,456

$ 6,402,681

$ 279,635

$ 626,507

$ 4,236,097

$ 2,793,091

$ 7,029,188

1
1
T

D

F
A
R

32,832

$ 346,872

252,443
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-

Total

$ 207,021

4,085

$

SDWD

364,994

Year End Capital

-

SFID

$ 367,902

Total

$

Total

August

Reconciliation

-

Total

SDWD

0
2
.
11,556

43,415

9,171
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